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mission
To develop, support and enhance the integrity, status and interests of the 

accountancy profession in Singapore.

objectives
ICPAS seeks to achieve its mission by 

• maintaining high standards of technical competence among its members;

• upholding the integrity and independence of the accountancy profession;

• enhancing the professional image and voice of the accountancy fraternity;

• contributing meaningfully to society through an active involvement in   
 community service; and 

• maintaining high standards of professionalism and productivity within the  
 Institute’s organisation and management to better serve the needs of  
 its members.
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notice of
annual general meeting

Notice is hereby given that in accordance with Article 67 of the Constitution of the Institute, the Annual General 
Meeting 2006/2007 of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore will be held on Saturday,  
21 April 2007 at 2.00 pm, at Meritus Mandarin Singapore, Mandarin �allroom (6th Floor, South Tower), 333 
Orchard Road, Singapore 238867.   

AGENDA

1 President’s address.

2 To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting 2005/2006 of members held on 22 April 2006.

3 To receive the Report of the Council for the year 2006/2007 and Accounts of the Institute for the year 
ended 31 December 2006.

4 To elect eight members to the Council as follows:

 (a) Practising members – four to hold office for a term of two years;

 (b) Non-practising members – four to hold office for a term of two years.

 The following members of the Council retire in accordance with the provisions of Articles 38 to 40 of  
the Constitution:

 Practising Members Non-practising Members 

 Fang Ai Lian Quek Shi Kui
 Ho Mun-Tuke, Don Tan �oen Eng
 Kon Yin Tong Yee Lat Shing, Tom
 Sitoh Yih Pin Yim Kam May

 Nominations have been received for the following:

 Practising Members Nominated by

 Fang Ai Lian Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest
 Ho Mun-Tuke, Don Khoo Ho Tong
 Kon Yin Tong Lee Chee Wung
 Sitoh Yih Pin Seow Teow Han, John
  Yeoh Oon Jin

notice of annual general meeting
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Non-Practising Members Nominated by
Quek Shi Kui Chan Yoke Kai
Tan �oen Eng Loh Hoon Sun
Yee Lat Shing, Tom Pang Yang Hoong
Yim Kam May Wong Lai Yong
  Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian

�y order of the Council

Janet Tan
Secretary
28 March 2007
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INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE
20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House,

Singapore 389805
Tel: (65) 6749 8060
Fax: (65) 6749 8061

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING LUNCH

Lunch will be served at 12.45 pm, followed by the Annual General Meeting at 2.00 pm.  To assist the Secretariat in the 
lunch arrangements, please return this reply form to the Institute by 13 April 2007.

I will be attending the AGM lunch on Saturday, 21 April 2007, at 12.45 pm, at Meritus Mandarin Singapore, 333 Orchard 
Road, Singapore 238867.

Member’s Name (in block):   I/C Number:

Membership Category:  *Honorary / Fellow / Practising / Non-practising / Provisional / Member-in-retirement

Company:

Telephone Number:       *(Office)/(Home) E-mail address:

Date:

Please tick if *Vegetarian / Muslim menu is required

Note: The lunch menu contains no pork and no lard.

*Please delete where inapplicable.

N�:  To avoid unnecessary costs to the 
Institute, please inform the Secretariat at 
least 3 days before the function if you have 
registered but subsequently are unable to 
attend the AGM lunch.

Signature

annual general meeting lunch reply form

annual general meeting
lunch reply form



INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS OF SINGAPORE

20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House,

Singapore 389805

STAMP

 Fold here    
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emblem of the institute of  
certified public accountants of singapore

The emblem consists of a book, a shield and two supporting lions over an escroll bearing
the motto of the Institute.

The book symbolises guidance and the constant search for knowledge.

The shield symbolises the Institute as a corporate body with a well-established and solid
foundation of accuracy and care. It has three main features:

(a) The scales or daching to reflect the long history of Singapore as a commercial centre;

(b) An interlocking element to denote networking and the significant involvement of the 
Institute’s members with computers; and 

(c) Various currencies to represent the units of measure with which the accountancy 
profession is associated.

The supporting lions indicate the Institute’s country of origin: the Lion City, Singapura.

emblem of the institute of certified public accountants of singapore
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corporate profile

corporate 
profile

The Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) is the national 
organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore. It was established in June 1963 
as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the Singapore Society of Accountants 
Ordinance, 1963. It was later reconstituted and renamed ICPAS on 11 February 1989 under 
the Accountants Act 1987. As of 1 April 2004, ICPAS has been reconstituted as a society 
under the Societies Act. Today, it represents more than 18,000 members.

The Institute is the body that accords the prestigious CPA Singapore (Certified Public 
Accountant Singapore) designation, which is synonymous with Integrity, Commitment, 
Professionalism, Authority in their field and Superiority, the five acronyms that 
represent “ICPAS”. The Institute currently has 14,000 members who hold the CPA 
Singapore designation.

ICPAS also caters for the training and professional development of its members through 
regular courses conducted by its training arm, the Singapore Accountancy Academy 
(SAA). Courses offered by the Academy include internationally recognised accounting 
courses under its Joint Scheme of Examination agreements with The Association of 
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) leading to the professional ACCA qualification, 
and the ACCA Certified Accounting Technician qualification, as well as the Diploma in 
Professional Accounting with a pathway to articulate into the �achelor of Commerce 
(Accounting) programme in the University of Queensland, Australia.

ICPAS’ network of members spans the globe and its international outlook and connections 
are reflected in its membership of regional and international accountancy organisations 
like the ASEAN Federation of Accountants (AFA), the Asia-Oceanic Tax Consultants’ 
Association (AOTCA) and the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC).

CPA House
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organisation
chart

organisation chart
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president’s
message

president’s message

Dear Members,

2006 has been an eventful year for ICPAS.

The Institute continued its focus 
on enhancing and promoting the 
standing and role of CPAs Singapore 
and providing strong support to 
members to enable them to meet the 
changing needs and expectations of 
business today. At the same time, we 
are committed to uphold the highest 
professional standards of our members 
for the benefit of the business 
community and interest of the public.

As part of its strategy to elevate the 
image of accountants and portray them 
as energetic and dynamic individuals 
who are successful and confident, ICPAS 
launched a new branding campaign that 
draws on the active sports theme. The 
campaign, which was carried through a 
series of bus and print advertisements, 
also aimed to debunk the perception 
that accountants are conservative, 
boring and unadventurous.

The Institute, together with its training 
arm, Singapore Accountancy Academy 
(SAA) also commissioned a two-
part television program on Channel 
NewsAsia in October.  Entitled “Strength 
in Numbers”, the program aimed to 
improve the image of accountants and 
promote accountancy as a career. Each 
30-minute episode centred on a theme 
designed to bring viewers into the 
daily work environment and lifestyle of 
two or three selected profiles, who are 
CPAs Singapore. 

The Institute, through its Corporate 
Governance Committee has issued 
a publication on “The Work of 
the Audit Committee – A Simple 
Guide”. It aims to enhance its 
members’ knowledge, the corporate 
community’s understanding and 

the public’s 
appreciation 
of the role and 
responsibilities 
of the audit 
committee.  
This publication is also designed 
to assist audit committees to go 
beyond mere compliance with audit 
committee requirements, codes 
and standards so that they can be 
more effective in discharging their 
roles and responsibilities. This is 
pertinent especially in the light 
of recent corporate scandals both 
internationally and in Singapore. 

During the year, the Institute signed 
a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) with SIM University (UniSIM) 
to collaborate in the area of training 
and continuing education, with 
the objective of nurturing more 
accounting professionals in Singapore. 

For SAA, 2006 also saw an increase 
in international student enrolments 
especially from Myanmar and Vietnam. 
We continued to see a steady stream 
of students coming from China as well.

Our SAA City Campus has also moved to 
a new location at 6 Raffles Quay #23-00, 
which the Institute recently purchased.  
This development was a result of 
favourable feedback on a centrally 
located campus that is especially 
convenient for working adults. 

Together with the Infocomm 
Development Authority (IDA), we 
launched the “�usiness Analytics & 
Reporting (�AR)” programme for the 
accounting industry. This new course 
has been rated as highly relevant to 
their workplace by participants. With 
50% of course fee funded by IDA, the 
course is already gaining popularity 
amongst our members.

The ICPAS Members’ Satisfaction 
Survey conducted in 2006 has shown 
encouraging results. About 92% of the 
respondents felt that ICPAS has met 
or exceeded their expectations. More 
members also felt that they are getting 
more value from their membership. 
On the service level, up to 97% of 
the respondants were satisfied or 
very satisfied with the timeliness 
of response, clarity of information 
provided, accuracy of information 
provided or professionalism of the 
membership staff. A high 93% of 
the respondants felt that being a 
CPA Singapore was essential to them. 
Indeed the results are indications that 
the Institute is heading in the right 
direction. However, we will not rest on 
our laurels but will continue to develop 
dynamic and forward-looking goals to 
ensure that we remain relevant in the 
ever-evolving and challenging business 
environment and give our members the 
appropriate support in meeting these 
challenges. At the same time, we will 
seek to continually provide even better 
membership value and service.

I would like to acknowledge the 
contributions of the Council and 
Committee members and thank 
them for their considerable time and 
resources in helping us meet our goals. 
I also thank our members for their 
valuable support throughout 2006.

Tan Boen Eng
President
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Seated 
(from left to right)

Danny Teoh Leong Kay
Fang Ai Lian
Ernest Kan Yaw Kiong (Vice President)
Tan �oen Eng (President)
John Seow Teow Han (Treasurer)
Pang Yang Hoong 
Gillian Yeo Hian Heng

Standing
(from left to right)

Janet Tan (Executive Director)
Loh Hoon Sun
Lee Chee Wung
Khoo Ho Tong
Kon Yin Tong
Don Ho Mun-Tuke
Tom Yee Lat Shing
Yim Kam May
Wong Lai Yong

Absent

Chan Yoke Kai, Quek Shi Kui, Sitoh Yih Pin, Yeoh Oon Jin

ICPAS
council members 2006/2007

ICPAS council members 2006/2007
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  The Council
  Tan �oen Eng – President
  Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Vice President
  Seow Teow Han, John – Treasurer

 Elected to Represent  Elected to Represent 
 Practising Members  Non-practising Members
 Fang Ai Lian  Chan Yoke Kai
 Ho Mun-Tuke, Don  Loh Hoon Sun
 Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest  Pang Yang Hoong
 Khoo Ho Tong  Quek Shi Kui
 Kon Yin Tong  Tan �oen Eng
 Seow Teow Han, John  Wong Lai Yong
 Sitoh Yih Pin  Yee Lat Shing, Tom
 Yeoh Oon Jin  Yim Kam May
 

 Appointed under Article 27 of the ICPAS Constitution
 Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian (appointed on 22.04.2006)

 Co-opted under Article 28 of the ICPAS Constitution
 Lee Chee Wung (appointed on 01.01.2006)
 Teoh Leong Kay, Danny (appointed 22.04.2006)

 Secretary / Executive Director
 Janet Tan  

 Auditors
 Ewe, Loke & Partners
 Certified Public Accountants
 8 Robinson Road, #08-00 ASO �uilding
 Singapore 048544

 Registered and Administrative Office
 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House,
 Singapore 389805
 Telephone: (65) 6749 8060    Facsimile: (65) 6749 8061
 Email: cpasingapore@icpas.org.sg
 Website: www.icpas.org.sg

corporate
information

corporate information
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minutes of 
annual general meeting 2005/2006

Date: Saturday, 22 April 2006
Time: 2.00 pm
Venue: Mandarin �allroom
 6th Floor, South Tower
 Meritus Mandarin Singapore
 333 Orchard Road, Singapore 238867

Total number of members present
Practising members: 50 
Non-practising members: 267
Provisional members: 25
 342

Chairman and President: Mr Tan �oen Eng
Secretary: Ms Janet Tan

1. NOTICE OF MEETING

 The notice of meeting, having been circulated to members before the meeting, was taken as read.

2. PRESIDENT’S ADDRESS 

The Chairman began his address by welcoming all members present at the Institute’s Annual General Meeting 
2005/2006.  He then proceeded to update the meeting on the Institute’s activities for the past year.

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS AND ISSUES

Technical Committees
The Chairman said that the Institute has many Technical Committees.  He reported that the Accounting Standards 
Committee had worked very closely with the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance (CCDG) on accounting 
standards and issued two FRSs, three amendments to FRSs and two INT FRSs in 2005.

The Chairman mentioned that the Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee had worked very closely with the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) and issued 19 auditing pronouncements and 22 conforming 
amendments to various SSAs.  The Committee also conducted a seminar on the “Expectation of Work of Auditors”.   

He added that the Financial Statements Review Committee had provided feedback to the auditors and preparers of 
financial statements. 

minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006
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minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006

The Chairman reported that the Corporate Governance Committee had given feedback to CCDG on the Proposed 
Revisions to the Code of Corporate Governance.  The Committee also issued press statements.  Some of the 
members of the Committee are represented on the CFO of the Year and �est Investor Relations awards.

The Chairman informed the meeting that the Public Accounting Practice Committee had given feedback to ACRA 
on the annual filing requirements.  The Committee also jointly organised a seminar with the Malaysian Institute of 
Accountants (MIA) on “Practice Strategy & Alliance Forum” in Johor �ahru.  

Membership Services
The Chairman pointed out that the Social Committee had been quite active and conducted a number of activities, 
including the walk at the MacRitchie Reservoir, etc. and the response was quite good.  He reported that the 
Institute launched the ICPAS ePublication, a weekly e-newsletter which summarises happenings in the Institute 
and updates on technical matters.    

Singapore Accountancy Academy
The Chairman mentioned that the Singapore Accountancy Academy (SAA), had also been very active and had some 
developments in 2005.

He announced that SAA was one of the first few Private Educational Organisations to be awarded the CaseTrust in 
2005.  The SAA also achieved the Singapore Quality Class award, which is the award of quality to the Institute.

He informed the meeting that SAA opened its City Campus on 27th floor of OU� Centre at the end of 2005.  This 
was actually in response to members’ requests to conduct CPE courses within the city area.  He added that the City 
Campus was a welcome move to the members.  It also had a members’ lounge.  The Chairman welcomed members 
to take advantage of the lounge at the city centre and any suggestions from members.

Continuing Professional Education 
The Chairman reported that SAA conducted a total of 209 CPE courses in 2005.

“CPA Singapore” Branding
The Chairman said that the Institute carried out a branding exercise for the CPA Singapore designation in 2005, 
which included co-sponsoring of the TV program “The Agenda – Corporate Culture”, jointly organising the CPA 
Forum, and producing a TV commercial and bus advertisements.  

Mutual Recognition Agreement (MRA) with The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA)
The Chairman informed the meeting that the Institute concluded an MRA with ACCA in 2005.  This was in addition 
to the MRA signed with CPA Australia.  The Chairman looked forward to members making use of these benefits and 
having more MRAs with other countries to facilitate members in their regionalisation efforts.  

Revamp of the Singapore Accountant Journal
The Chairman reported that the journal had been revamped to give a new look and new content.  He welcomed 
members’ feedback so that the Institute can make further improvement.

ACRA-ICPAS Seminar: “Essentials of Public Accountants” 
The Chairman said that ACRA and ICPAS jointly organised a seminar on “Essentials for Public Accountants” in 
March 2006.  The aim was to brief members, in particular Practising Members, on the revised Practice Monitoring 
Programme.  He added that ACRA will focus more on public accountants who audit public interest entities, and 
ICPAS has provided the practice monitoring reviewers who will review public accountants who do not audit public 
interest entities.   The reviews had commenced in April 2006.
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CGFRC-ICPAS Forum: Auditors and Audit Committees – Partners in Corporate Governance
The Chairman mentioned that the Institute organised a seminar on the “Auditors and Audit Committees – Partners 
in Corporate Governance” in March 2006.  The speaker was Mr James E Copeland, Jr, the former CEO of Deloitte & 
Touche, USA and its parent company.  He commented that the seminar was quite well attended.  

Financial Performance of the Institute
The Chairman highlighted that the Institute had a surplus after income tax of $2.3 million and that much of this 
surplus came from SAA.  He added that the Institute was looking forward to expanding more of SAA’s activities. 

Retiring Council Member
The Chairman informed the meeting that one Council Member, Mr Tang Kok Kwai, retired in 2006 and would not be 
seeking re-election.  He said that Mr Tang joined the Institute in 1988 and became a Council Member in 2000.  He 
added that he contributed a lot to the Institute and the Institute is sorry to lose him.  On behalf of the Institute, 
the Chairman thanked Mr Tang.  

GOING FORWARD

The Chairman informed the meeting that looking forward, SAA is trying to get a bigger market share in the 
educational field.  The Institute is also looking outside Singapore to see whether it can conduct courses outside 
Singapore, for instance, in China and Vietnam.  He commented that this is not an easy field, but the Institute will 
try very hard.
  
The Chairman added that the Institute will continue with its branding efforts in 2006 and the Institute is looking 
at a new TV commercial and a forum jointly organised with another body.  

CONCLUSION

The Chairman wished members all the best and thanked them for their support and for taking time off to attend 
the AGM.

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2004/2005 

3.1  The minutes of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) 2004/2005 held on 23 April 2005, having been circulated to all  
members were taken as read.

3.2  The Secretary, Ms Janet Tan, drew the attention of the meeting to the first sentence of page 14 of the ICPAS 
Annual Report and Accounts 2005/2006, and it was proposed to delete the phrase, “such as Parmalat, AIG and 
Marsh and MacLennan… Accord Customer Care Solutions.”, as these companies were in fact not mentioned in the 
President’s address in the last AGM. 

3.3  On the proposal of Dr A. Jothidas and seconded by Mr Loke Hip Meng, the minutes of the AGM 2004/2005, as 
amended, were approved.

3.4  The Chairman then polled the members present on the confirmation of the minutes.  From the poll results, the 
Chairman declared that the minutes, as amended had been confirmed.

minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006
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4. ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2005/2006

4.1  The Chairman referred the members to the Annual Report of the Council for the year 2005/2006 and the Accounts 
for the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2005 and invited comments from the members present.

4.2  Mr Yeo Yew Swee, Practising Member, raised a few financial reporting issues.  He brought the meeting’s attention 
to Note 2.1, Statement of Compliance, in the Notes to the Financial Statements in the annual report, which stated 
that “the financial statements of the Institute and its subsidiary companies have been prepared in accordance 
with the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs).  He added that Note 15, Subsidiary 
Companies and Inter-Companies Transactions, in the Notes to the Financial Statements stated that the Institute’s 
subsidiaries are limited companies.  He believed that the financial statements of the subsidiaries should be 
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act instead of the Societies Act.  He questioned whether it would be 
more appropriate and precise to state that “the financial statements of the Institute have been prepared based 
on the Societies Act, whereas its subsidiary companies have been prepared according to the Companies Act”.  
However, he added that there is not much difference in respect of financial matters within the two Acts, and that 
these financial statements had been prepared in compliance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards.  

4.3  Mr Yeo raised his second issue on Note 2.3, �asis of Accounting, in the Notes to the Financial Statements, 
which stated that “the financial statements of the Institute and its subsidiary companies have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention.”  He queried whether this was still valid in today’s financial reporting 
environment.  He said that a CPA would know that by definition of financial instrument in FRS 32, most of 
the items in the balance sheet except inventory and property, plant and equipment (PPE), are considered as 
financial assets.  He added that financial assets, whether they are held for trading, held to maturity, available 
for sale, accounts receivable or loans, should be initially measured at either fair value or fair value plus 
transaction cost.  In addition, fair value is either market value, discounted cash flow value or certain model 
value, where most of his colleagues cannot comprehend.  He queried who could honestly say that he understood 
the �lack-Scholes model or the binomial model.  He pointed out that all these are current cost rather than 
historical cost convention.  He queried why the Institute, in today’s financial reporting environment, still 
mention that its financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

4.4  Next, Mr Yeo referred the meeting to Note 2.7, Trade and Other Receivables, in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements, which stated that the “trade and other receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice 
amount or cost less impairment losses on any uncollectible amount.”  He commented that the statement was 
absolutely correct.  However, paragraph 59 of FRS 39 states that impairment loss will be incurred if there is 
objective evidence of impairment and the impact on the cash flow can be reliably estimated.  An IRAS circular 
also confirmed that general and specific provision for bad and doubtful debt would no longer be made under FRS 
39.  He referred the meeting to Note 4, Trade and Other Receivables, in the Notes to the Financial Statements, 
which disclosed an allowance for doubtful debts [sic] is equivalent to provision for bad debts and he noticed 
that the Institute made a provision for bad debts [sic] in the current year because of paragraph 59 of FRS 39.  He 
cited a CPE seminar by Professor Ng on FRSs 32 and 39, in which Professor Ng cast his doubt on whether it is still 
necessary to present a provision for bad debts [sic] in the financial statements when it is no longer relevant. 

4.5  Mr Yeo brought the meeting’s attention to Note 2.11, Foreign Currency Translation.  He noted that the Institute 
used measurement currency concept.  He pointed out that the measurement currency and reporting currency 
concepts are under the old version of INT FRS 19.  He said that the correct term should be “functional and 
presentation currency” under the current FRS 21.  He added that the two concepts have certain differences and 
emphases.  He queried why the Institute, as the accountancy body, used the old term  (“measurement currency”) 
instead of the new term (“functional and presentation currency”). 

minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006
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4.6  With regard to Note 18, Operating Lease Commitments, Mr Yeo noted that the Institute disclosed at balance sheet 
date, the commitments in respect of operating leases within one year and within two to five years, but did not 
disclose any commitments beyond five years.  He said that under paragraph 35 of FRS 17, a general description 
of the lease agreement is required to be disclosed.  He said that there was no such description in the Notes to 
the Financial Statements.  He added that he could not identify which item in the income statement relates to 
operating lease in the Notes to the Financial Statements.  As such, he was of the view that the Notes to the 
Financial Statements were inadequate. 

 
4.7  Lastly, Mr Yeo referred the meeting to Note 20, Comparative Figures, which stated that “the financial 

statements for 2005 cover the twelve-month period from 1 January 2005 to 31 December 2005 and the 
financial statements for the preceding year cover the nine-month period from 1 April 2004 to 31 December 
2004”.  He said that according to paragraph 49 of IFRS 1, he believed that the Institute needed to disclose 
the reason for a period being used if it differs from the usual one-year period, especially when comparative 
account for the income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement and the related 
notes are not entirely comparable.  

4.8  The Treasurer thanked Mr Yeo for the points he raised.  In response to Mr Yeo’s first comment, the Treasurer said 
that the Institute is a society and the other subsidiaries are incorporated companies. Therefore, for clarity, the 
Institute could have mentioned that the principal account was prepared in accordance with the Societies Act while 
the subsidiaries were in accordance with the Companies Act.  However, he noted that the important point is that 
these accounts were in compliance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards.  

4.9  With regard to the second issue on historical cost and fair value, the Treasurer reiterated that it was correct 
that the financial statements of the Institute and its subsidiaries had been prepared under the historical cost 
convention although each class of asset and liability had been assessed on their fair values.

4.10  On the allowance for bad debts, the Treasurer clarified that these were specific and not general provisions, as there 
were trigger events for these debts to be provided for.  As such, additional information as disclosed in Note 4 was 
not unnecessary or irrelevant.

4.11  On the issue of measurement currency, the Treasurer noted and thanked Mr Yeo for highlighting the point.

4.12  With regard to Mr Yeo’s comment on Note 18 on operating lease commitments, the Treasurer said that the Institute 
would look into more disclosure in the next set of accounts.  The Vice President was of the view that the numbers 
(not more than $300,000) were quite immaterial.  As such, he was of the view that to disclose more would be 
deemed as additional requirements.

4.13  In response to Mr Yeo’s comment on comparative figures, the Treasurer was of the opinion that the statement 
disclosing that ICPAS was reconstituted as a society in 2004 and that the financial statements for 2004 covered a 
nine-month period would be sufficient disclosure.

4.14  Vice President, Dr Ernest Kan, said that some of the points raised during the meeting were very insightful and 
that he could sense the big challenge accountants face given the number of new accounting standards that 
came on board.

minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006
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4.15  Dr Kan said that FRS 32 Financial Instrument on Disclosure and Presentation and FRS 39 Financial Instrument in the 
Context of Recognition and Measurement, and especially FRS 39, have been applied for the first time not only in the 
Institute’s accounts, but also generally in Singapore for all financial statements intended to give a true and fair view.  
He noted that the concept within FRS 39 is a concern for many, and that not all members can fully understand the 
requirements of FRSs 32 and 39.  He said that the Institute had spelt out quite clearly in the context where FRS 
39 addressed the issue of various types of investments, for example, investment held for trading, held to maturity, 
held for resale and a general category called loans. The treatment of each of these can be somewhat different 
compared to the treatment used in the past before the implementation of FRS 39.  As such, Dr Kan hoped that the 
notes that had been spelt out in the Institute’s accounting policy had addressed the requirements of these FRSs. 

4.16  The Chairman thanked Mr Seow and Dr Kan for their responses. 

4.17  As no further matters were raised, the Annual Report of the Institute for the year 2005/2006 and the Accounts of 
the Institute for the year ended 31 December 2005 have been received by the meeting, upon proposal by Mr Tom 
Yee Lat Shing and seconded by Mr Andrew Kuan Yoke Loon.

5. ELECTION OF COUNCIL MEMBERS

5.1  The Chairman informed the meeting that the following members of the Council had retired in accordance with the 
provisions of Articles 38 to 40 of the Constitution:

  Practising Members Non-practising Members
  Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest Chan Yoke Kai
  Khoo Ho Tong Loh Hoon Sun
  Seow Teow Han, John Tang Kok Kwai
  Yeoh Oon Jin Wong Lai Yong

5.2  As only four nominations each had been received in respect of the Practising Members and Non-practising 
Members, the four Practising Members and four Non-practising Members were deemed to be duly elected members 
of the Council for a two-year term as from this Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article 23 of the ICPAS 
(General Meetings) Rules.  They were:

  Practising Members Non-practising Members
  Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest Chan Yoke Kai
  Khoo Ho Tong Loh Hoon Sun
  Seow Teow Han, John Pang Yang Hoong
  Yeoh Oon Jin Wong Lai Yong

6. TERMINATION OF MEETING

  In conclusion, the Chairman cited Rule 6 of the ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules, which provided that no motion 
shall be discussed at any Annual General Meeting of the Institute unless the required notice of 14 days was given.  
As the Secretariat had not received any such notice, and as all items on the agenda had been dealt with, the 
meeting was formally declared closed at 2.55 pm.

  Signed as a correct record
  Chairman

minutes of annual general meeting 2005/2006
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report of
the council

The Council has the pleasure in presenting its 2006/2007 Annual Report and Accounts of the Institute for the year ended
31 December 2006.

At the first Council meeting held on 22 April 2006, the following Council members were elected as office bearers:
President - Tan �oen Eng
Vice President - Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest
Treasurer - Seow Teow Han, John

THE COUNCIL

The 2006/2007 Council held ten ordinary meetings and one emergency meeting from 22 April 2006 to 28 February 2007. 
The number of Council meetings attended (A) and the number of committees on which each Council member served (�)
are given below:
 A B  A B
Chan Yoke Kai 5 1 Seow Teow Han, John 10 5
Fang Ai Lian 7 3 Sitoh Yih Pin 4 4
Ho Mun-Tuke, Don 10 3 Tan �oen Eng 11 10
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest 9 10 Teoh Leong Kay, Danny 4 2
Khoo Ho Tong 10 7 Wong Lai Yong 10 5
Kon Yin Tong  6 6 Yee Lat Shing, Tom 9 3
Lee Chee Wung 9 4 Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian 6 3
Loh Hoon Sun 9 3 Yeoh Oon Jin 4 2
Pang Yang Hoong 7 2 Yim Kam May 10 3
Quek Shi Kui 7 3   
     

MANPOWER AND TRAINING

8 new positions were created in the Secretariat and the Academy to enhance the Institute’s services in areas of branding, 
finance, IT, practice monitoring, courses and professional education.  The total staff strength of the Institute as at 
February 2007 stood at 76.
 
In line with the Institute’s goals to improve customer service and communication, staff  attended a series of Service 
Quality training to improve service levels in 2006. The Institute believes that by upgrading the skills of its staff and 
providing a work-life balanced environment for staff, productivity and efficiency would be further enhanced.
 

SINGAPORE ACCOUNTANCy ACADEMy

In 2006, the Singapore Accountancy Academy (SAA) saw several developments that enabled it to strengthen its position 
to serve the Institute’s members as well as its students enrolled in the various programmes.

report of the council
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The SAA has made some inroads in casting a wider net for international students in 2006.  The Academy saw an increase 
in international student enrolments especially from Myanmar and Vietnam, with good numbers coming from China as well.

The SAA City Campus established at the OU� Centre in December 2005 has proven itself to be a success.  This initial 
rented location provided the Institute with a good testing ground to expand ICPAS member services and accountancy 
and finance related programmes into the city area.  As such, this Central �usiness District (C�D) training location has 
proven itself to be popular amongst students as well as ICPAS members.  Many found the location ideally suited for the 
working adults in the C�D.  

Following on this success and favorable feedback from members and students, ICPAS has purchased its own property at 
6 Raffles Quay #23-00 – the former John Hancock Tower, to set up a new SAA City Campus.  The convenient location 
has around 10,200 sq ft of training space with ample facilities nearby such as MRT, parking and food outlets.  Classroom 
facilities have been enhanced together with an improved member’s lounge.  The City Campus enables SAA to better reach 
out to service the needs of members and students in the C�D area.

In 2006, ICPAS and SAA worked closely with the Infocomm Development Authority (IDA) to launch the “�usiness 
Analytics & Reporting (�AR)” programme for the accounting industry.  With IDA funding this programme of up to 50% of 
course fee, the programme is gaining popularity amongst members.  Many participants who attended this course rated the 
programme as highly relevant to their workplace.

SAA will continue to roll out more programmes relevant to ICPAS members.

INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

The Institute hosted the following visits in 2006:

n	 Mr Tran Ngoc Mai, Council Member of Vietnam Association of Certified Public Accountants on 2 March
n	 Mr Cao ZiJian, President and Ms Liu Youpin, Director of the Financial Affairs Office from Sichuan College of Education 

on 1 April
n	 Mr Vincent Ashcroft, Senior Representative – South East Asia, Minister – Counsellor (Financial) and Mr Charles Macek, 

Chairman – Financial Reporting Council from Australian Embassy on 7 June
n	 Members of Delegation from Suzhou Industrial Park and Suzhou Municipal and District Government on 8 June
n	 Ms Judy Vulker, Project Director, Asia Pacific from the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants on 13 June
n	 Ms Georgina Chan, Executive Director – Admission, Member Services and Student Education & Training from Hong 

Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants on 17 July
n	 Mr Allen �lewitt, Chief Executive from Association of Chartered Certified Accountants on 18 July
n	 Mr Stephen Heathcote, Director – Learning & Development and Mr Alan Hatfield, Head of Learning Partnerships from 

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants on 25 August
n	 Mr Michael Wells, Manager – Education Project from International Accounting Standards Committee Foundation on  

13 September
n	 Mr Richard Dyson, Deputy President from Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales on 14 September
n	 Mr Norman Murray, President and Professor C Mark Allison, Executive Director – Education from The Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of Scotland on 25 September
n	 Mr Paul Thompson, Technical Manager from International Federation of Accountants on 1 November
n	 Mr Stephen Heathcote, Director – Learning & Development and Mr Alan Hatfield, Head of Learning Partnerships from 

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants on 3 November
n	 Members of Delegation from National Accounting Institute, �eijing on 14 November
n	 Members of Delegation from Shanghai Municipal Audit �ureau on 18 December

report of the council
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TECHNICAL MATTERS

Accounting
During the year, the Institute’s Accounting Standards Committee (ASC) continued to play a pivotal role in working with 
the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance (“CCDG”) to review new accounting proposals and setting accounting 
standards, i.e. Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs). The FRSs are virtually converged with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International Accounting Standards (IASs) issued by the International Accounting 
Standards �oard (IAS�).

Details of the contributions of the Committee can be found in the Committee’s report on pages 35 – 37 of the annual report.

Auditing
The Institute’s Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee (AASC) continued to review and issue auditing 
promulgations. Auditing standards known as Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSAs) and audit practice statements known 
as Statements of Auditing Practice (SAPs) are harmonised with international equivalents ISAs and IAPSs respectively 
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards �oard (IAAS�) of International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC). The AASC also issues Audit Guidance Statements (AGSs) as best practice statements to provide assistance to 
auditors on matters of relevance not covered by SSAs or SAPs. The list of auditing standards and exposure drafts approved 
by the Institute’s Council on the recommendations of the AASC during the year, can be found in the Committee’s report 
on pages 38 – 40 of the annual report.

The list of auditing pronouncements which have been withdrawn can also be found on page 39 of the annual report.

Statements of Recommended Accounting Practice
The Institute has approved the following Statements of Recommended Accounting Practice (RAPs):

n	 RAP 12 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations for financial statements prepared under Part IX of the 
Fifth Schedule to the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005. This 
RAP serves to address only the revised “Financial Information” requirements for consolidated or combined financial 
statements under Part IX of the Fifth Schedule to the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and 
Debentures) Regulations 2005 [“SFR”]. Listing aspirants have to comply with the revised “Financial Information” 
requirements for prospectuses lodged on or after 15 April 2006.

 Prior to the issuance of RAP 12, the Institute had issued an exposure draft of the document during the year.

n	 Amendment to paragraph 159(g) of RAP 6 Accounting and Reporting by Charities pertaining to trustees’ or office 
bearers’ expenses for clarity

The Institute has withdrawn the following RAPs:

n	 RAP 3 Reporting Value Added Information
n	 RAP 4 Accounting for Financial Futures

ACkNOWLEDGEMENT

The Council would like to thank all members who have actively supported the Institute’s activities and programmes during 
the year. The Council would like to commend the chairmen and members of the various committees for their valuable 
contributions and dedicated service to the Institute.
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highlights of 2006

highlights 
of 2006

January
The Institute launched a new 
branding campaign that draws on 
the active sports theme to boost the 
image of accountants and portray 
them as energetic, adventurous, 
hip and dynamic individuals who 
are successful and confident. At the 
same time, it also aimed to debunk 
the perception that accountants 
are conservative, boring and 
unadventurous.

The campaign was carried 
through a series of print and bus 
advertisements in The Straits Times 
and on S�S buses respectively. 

The advertisements used a 
mountain-climber, a boxer as well 

left
S�S bus carrying the CPA Singapore 
branding advertisement.

as a runner crossing the finishing 
line to illustrate the chosen taglines 
“Designated to scale greater 
heights”, “Designated to create 
an impact” and “Designated to 
succeed” respectively.

March
On 1 March, the Singapore 
Accountancy Academy (SAA), the 
training arm of ICPAS, officially 
opened its City Campus on the 27th 
storey of OU� Centre. Located in the 
heart of the Central �usiness District, 
the opening of the new Campus 
marked another milestone for SAA, as 
well as ICPAS.

bottom left
Guest-of-Honour for the seminar on 

“Essentials for Public Accountants” is Mrs 
Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State for Finance 

and Transport (second from right).

bottom right
Opening ceremony of SAA City Campus.
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highlights of 2006

On 16 March, ICPAS and the 
Accounting & Corporate Regulatory 
Authority (ACRA) jointly organised 
a seminar on “Essentials for Public 
Accountants” at Raffles City 
Convention Centre.  The objective 
of the inaugural seminar was to 
announce details of the revised 
Practice Monitoring Programme.

April
The Institute’s Annual General Meeting 
held on 22 April saw the re-election 
of Mr Tan �oen Eng, Dr Ernest Kan 
and Mr John Seow as President, Vice 
President and Treasurer respectively.

June
Two new committees – the 
CFO Committee and the Young 
Accountants Group Committee were 
launched at a press conference 
held on 27 June at Raffles Hotel 
Singapore, together with the 
issuance of a publication on “The 
Work of the Audit Committee”.

July
The Institute unveiled another 
series of sports-themed branding 
advertisements for CPA Singapore in 
July. The sportspersons – a fencer, a 
diver and a cyclist, were chosen to go 

right
ICPAS Annual General Meeting.

bottom left
Print advertisement of the CPA 

Singapore brand.

bottom right
ICPAS Press Conference 2006 for the 

launch of CFO and Young Accountants 
Group Committees, as well as the 
publication on “The Work Of the 

Audit Committee”.
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highlights of 2006

with the taglines “Designated to give 
you an edge”, “Designated to venture 
with confidence” and “Designated to 
forge ahead” respectively.

As a prelude to the CPA Forum 
2006 in August, ICPAS jointly 
sponsored four episodes of “�usiness 
Dashboard” program on Channel 
NewsAsia with CPA Australia.  The 
four-episode program was telecast 
from 3 July to 29 July. 

August
On 11 August, ICPAS successfully 
organised the CPA Forum 2006 together 
with CPA Australia.  The theme of the 
forum “�usiness Dashboard” tied in 
with the topics featured on Channel 
NewsAsia’s TV series in July. Mrs 
Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State for 

Finance and Transport, was the Guest-
of-Honour.

October
The Institute, together with 
its training arm, Singapore 
Accountancy Academy (SAA) 
commissioned a two-part television 
program in late October. Entitled 
“Strength in Numbers”, the 
program aimed to improve the 
image of accountants and promote 
accountancy as a career choice.

On 10 October, the Singapore 
Institute of Taxation Limited (SIT) 
was launched. The SIT is a joint 
effort of ICPAS, the Law Society of 
Singapore (Lawsoc) and the Nanyang 
Technological University (NTU).

left
Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State 
for Finance and Transport engaging 
guests in a discussion at the CPA 
Forum 2006.

 bottom left
Invited panelists at the CPA Forum 

2006 – �usiness Dashboard.  

bottom right
Guest-of-Honour, Associate Professor 

Ho Peng Kee, launched the Insolvency 
Practitioners Association of Singapore 

Limited (IPAS).
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highlights of 2006

basketball, badminton, bowling, 
table tennis and soccer in the Inter-
Professional 2006 Games.  They also 
beat sportsmen from the other five 
professional bodies to emerge the 
overall Champion.

December
ICPAS and SIM University 
(UniSIM) signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) on 6 December 
to collaborate in the area of training 
and continuing education, with 
the objective of nurturing more 
accounting professionals in Singapore. 
Under this collaboration, UniSIM 
will offer relevant certificate courses 
from its School of �usiness to ICPAS 
Professional Examination candidates 
who require additional subjects.

top
Members had a fun-filled evening at the ICPAS 

Annual Dinner & Dance 2006.

bottom
ICPAS Award Winners 2006 (left to right): Mr 

Tang Kok Kwai (Gold Medal), Mrs Maria Lee 
(Silver Medal), Mr Chua Kim Chiu (Merit Award) 

and Mr Hamish Christie (Merit Award).

bottom left
Championship trophy for ICPAS, which 

emerged overall champion in the Inter-
Professional Games 2006.

bottom centre
Dialogue session with the Community 
Outreach Group leader, Mr S Iswaran, 

Minister of State for Trade and Industry.

bottom right
ICPAS and uniSIM MOU  

signing ceremony.

The Institute held its Annual Dinner 
and Dance on 27 October at the 
Marina Mandarin Singapore.  Gracing 
the event was Guest-of-Honour Mrs 
Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State for 
Finance and Transport.  Members 
present had a fun-filled evening of 
song, dance, games, great food and 
prizes that were based on the theme 
“Retro Fever”.  

November 
The Insolvency Practitioners 
Association of Singapore Limited 
(IPAS) conducted its official launch 
and its inaugural IPAS Conference on 
2 November. The official launch was 
graced by Senior Minister of State 
for Law & Home Affairs, Associate 
Professor Ho Peng Kee at the Grand 
Hyatt Hotel.

On 15 November, a dialogue session 
was held with the Community 
Outreach Group leader, Mr S. Iswaran, 
Minister of State for Trade and 
Industry.  ICPAS was one of the key 
organisations under the Professional 
Group to host this dialogue. Mr 
Iswaran, together with Mr Michael 
Palmer, MP for Pasir Ris-Punggol GRC 
(Punggol East) met the office bearers 
of ICPAS together with 20 members 
at the lively session.

ICPAS sportsmen did the Institute 
proud by coming up tops in 
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the CPA singapore brand

the CPA 
singapore brand
The CPA Singapore designation is synonymous with Integrity, Commitment, Professionalism, Authority 
in their field and Superiority, the five acronyms that represent “ICPAS”. 

The designation demonstrates one’s commitment to true professionalism, a commitment that 
employers appreciate. �esides being a hallmark of high standing and professional integrity, it 
provides diverse as well as global opportunities. 

With this competitive edge, CPAs Singapore are always a step ahead and designated to succeed.  

The FCPA Singapore or Fellow status brings CPAs to another level.  It recognises the seniority of CPAs 
as members who have reached the top echelons in their profession.

Branding Activities in 2006
Through the many branding 
activities and efforts in 2006, the 
Institute actively promoted both 
the CPA Singapore designation 
as well as ICPAS to raise their 
profiles for greater awareness and 
recognition. Some of the notable 
activities are:

Career Fair
The Institute and its training 
arm, the Singapore Accountancy 
Academy, participated in the Career 
2006 exhibition from 2 – 5 March at 
the Suntec Singapore International 
Convention & Exhibition Centre. 

Touted as the largest career exhibition 
in the region, the four-day event 
attracted 436,000 visitors and was 
a suitable platform for the Institute 
and the Academy to reach out to 
potential members and students.  

Co-sponsorship of “Business 
Dashboard” on Channel 
NewsAsia
To raise the profile of the Institute 
and its members, ICPAS jointly 
commissioned a TV program on 
Channel NewsAsia (CNA) with 

CPA Australia entitled “�usiness 
Dashboard”.  The four-episode 
program, hosted by Melvin Yong, was 
telecast from 3 July to 29 July. 
 
Topics covered were business 
continuity, risk management, 
succession planning, how companies 
plan business growth, sustainability 
accounting, global accounting,  
and more.

CPA Forum
The CPA Forum 2006 was co-
organised with CPA Australia as 
a culmination to the TV program, 
�usiness Dashboard.  The forum, 
held at Swissôtel The Stamford, 
Singapore on 11 August, attracted 

top
ICPAS and SAA at the Career  

Fair 2006.

bottom
The CPA Forum was well attended by 

over 400 participants.
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over 400 finance, accounting and 
business professionals.  High-profile 
panelists and prominent speakers 
lead in the lively discussions.

National Day Parade 
Sponsorship
ICPAS joined the nation in celebrating 
its 41st birthday celebration by 
donating $3,000 cash towards the 
National Day Parade 2006.

Print and Bus Advertisements
The Institute introduced a new 
branding campaign using the 
sports theme and new taglines 
“Designated to scale greater 
heights”, “Designated to create an 
impact” and “Designated to succeed” 
to portray accountants as energectic, 
adventurous hip, dynamic individuals 
who are at the same time successful, 
confident and superior. Prominent 
advertisements were placed in The 
Straits Times as well as on S�S buses 
throughout 2006.

In July, the Institute unveiled 
another series of CPA Singapore 
branding advertisements featuring 
different sports such as fencing, 
scuba diving and cycling as part of 
the sports theme.

Spot the CPA Singapore Bus 
Advertisement Contest 
To further leverage on the visibility 
of the bus advertisements, ICPAS 
also organized a contest to spot the 
buses featuring the CPA Singapore 

branding advertisements. Members 
were encouraged to enter a lucky 
draw contest to win shopping 
vouchers by spotting and emailing 
the bus number to the Institute.

Commission of TV Program 
Strength in Numbers
The Institute, together with 
its training arm, Singapore 
Accountancy Academy (SAA) 
commissioned a two-part television 
program in October.  Entitled 
“Strength in Numbers”, the 
program aimed to improve the 
image of accountants and promote 
accountancy as a career.

The program consisted of two 30-
minute episodes that are profile-
driven, informative and educational.  
Each episode centres on a theme 

left
Our CPA Singapore branding advertisements go 
on the roads of Singapore.

top
CPA Singapore print advertisements.

designed to bring viewers into the 
daily work environment and lifestyle 
of two or three selected profiles. 
The program was broadcasted on 
Channel NewsAsia from 25 October 
to 6 November.

Broadcasting of TV Commercial 
During IMF
To further promote the CPA 
Singapore designation to an 
international crowd of professionals 
and executives, the Institute 
launched a TV commercial on 
Channel NewsAsia (CNA) during 
the Annual Meetings of the �oards 
of Governors of the International 
Monetary Fund (IMF) and the World 
�ank Group in Singapore.  The  

the CPA singapore brand
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commercial was aired from  
11 September to 24 September, as 
well as during the CNA coverage 
of the IMF meetings.  CNA is the 
official media for the IMF meeting 
and the viewership during the 
period reached a high 16,000, which 
included both foreign delegates and 
Singaporeans. 

Media Publicity for ICPAS
In its continuous efforts to elevate 
the ICPAS profile and CPA Singapore 
designation, the Institute worked 
closely with the media throughout the 
year and gained widespread exposure 
on its news and activities such as:

Activities
n “Essentials for Public Accountants” 

seminar jointly organized by ICPAS 
Practice Monitoring Department 
and Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority 

n ICPAS AGM 2006
n ICPAS Press Conferences
n ICPAS Forms Two New 

Committees For CFOs and Young 
Accountants

n ICPAS Issues Publication on “The 
Work of the Audit Committee”

n CPA Forum 2006
n ICPAS Annual Dinner and Dance 

2006 
n Cocktail-cum-Panel Discussion by 

CFO Committee. 

Media Releases and Letters  
to Editors
n ICPAS emphasises the use of 

proper accounting treatment 
and the role & responsibilities of 
Directors and Management

n CFOs should be qualified, ICPAS 
says

n Launch of the Singapore 
Institute of Taxation Limited 
(SIT)

ICPAS Sought for Comments
The Institute was also interviewed 
on its views on various issues 
including:
n ACRA’s warning to accountants on 

overstating their experience online 
n due diligence matters 
n new exposure draft on SME 

accounting procedures
n CAO scandal
n SGX’s decision not to stop listing 

futures based on foreign stocks.  

MOU with UniSIM
The Institute and SIM University 
(UniSIM) signed a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) on 6 December 
to collaborate in the area of 
training and continuing education, 
with the objective of nurturing 
more accounting professionals in 
Singapore. Under this collaboration, 
UniSIM will offer certificate courses 
from its School of �usiness to ICPAS 
Professional Examination candidates 
who require additional subjects. 

Participation in Local & 
Overseas Conferences
The Institute remained active in the 
participation of local and overseas 
conferences.  It was involved in the 

following conferences in 2006:
n 87th ASEAN Federation of 

Accountants (AFA) Council Meeting 
on 1 July in Manila, Philippines

n International Federation of 
Accountants’ (IFAC) first global 
forum focused entirely on small- 
and medium-sized entities and 
small and medium accounting 
practices in July

n 88th ASEAN Federation of 
Accountants (AFA) Council 
Meeting hosted by ICPAS on 9 
September at M Hotel Singapore

n In conjunction with the 
AFA Council Meeting, ICPAS 
also organized a seminar for 
its members and its ASEAN 
counterparts on 8 September

n The International Federation 
of Accountants (IFAC) Council 
Meeting on 10 November in 
Istanbul, Turkey

n 89th ASEAN Federation of 
Accountants (AFA) Council 
Meeting on 27 January 2007 in 
�angkok, Thailand

bottom
ICPAS Vice President, Dr Ernest Kan (right) 

with newly-elected IFAC President, Mr 
Fermin del Valle (left).

the CPA singapore brand
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Significant Achievement of Members
The achievements of ICPAS members further enhanced the prestigious image 
of CPAs Singapore.  During the year, the following members were conferred 
with the prestigious National Day Honours 2006 awards by the Government 
of Singapore:

the CPA singapore brand

1. The Meritorious Service Medal
 [Pingat Jasa Gemilang]
 Mr Lim Hock San, PPA(E), BBM, JP
	 n Fellow and past President, ICPAS
	 n Chairman, National Council against Drug Abuse

2. The Public Service Star
 [Bintang Bakti Masyarakat]
 Mr Noris Ong Chin Guan JP, PBM
	 n Fellow, ICPAS
	 n Former Vice President & Council Member, ICPAS
	 n Councillor, South East CDC

3. Public Administration Medal (Gold)
 [Pingkat Pentadbiran Awam (Emas)]
 Ms Chua Geok Wah
	 n Fellow, ICPAS
	 n Accountant-General, Accountant General’s 

Department

4. The Commendation Medal
 [Pingat kepujian]
 Ms Cher Ming Hui
	 n Provisional Member, ICPAS
	 n Deputy Director (Financial Administration & 

Control), Accountant-General’s Department

5. The Public Service Medal
 [Pingat Bakti Masyarakat]
 Mr kang Choon Pin
	 n Practising Member, ICPAS
	 n Vice Chairman, Finance Committee, North East CDC

6. Mr Goh Han kim
	 n Non-practising Member, ICPAS
	 n Member, Joo Chiat CCC

7. Ms Euleen Goh yiu kiang
	 n Non-practising Member, ICPAS
	 n Chairperson, Financial Industry Competency 

Standards Committee

8. Mr Han Eng Juan
	 n Member-in-retirement, ICPAS
	 n Member, Citizenship Committee of Inquiry

9. Mr Philip Tan Ling kwok
	 n Non-practising Member, ICPAS
	 n Vice-Chairman, �raddell Heights CCMC
 

1    2     3     4

5    6     7     8    9
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membership
services

membership services

Technical Services
n During the year, the Institute, 

through its Accounting Standards 
Committee, continued to play a 
pivotal role in working with the 
Council on Corporate Disclosure 
and Governance (CCDG) in 
reviewing new accounting 
proposals and setting accounting 
standards, i.e. Financial 
Reporting Standards (FRSs) and 
Interpretations of Financial 
Reporting Standards (INT FRSs). 
As of 31 December, two FRSs, 
four amendments to FRSs and five 
INT FRSs were issued by CCDG 
subsequent to the Institute’s 
recommendations.

n During the year, the Institute’s 
Council, on the recommendation 
of the Auditing and Assurance 
Standards Committee, approved 
17 auditing pronouncements. 
Statements of Auditing Practice 
(SAPs) (except SAP 11, SAP 
19, SAP 24 and SAP 25) and 
the sample auditor’s reports in 
the Appendices of Singapore 
Standards on Auditing (SSAs) 
that do not have an equivalent 
auditing pronouncement from 
the International Auditing and 
Assurance Standards �oard 
(IAAS�) of the International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
were renamed as Audit Guidance 
Statements (AGSs).

n On 7 March, the Institute 
participated in the award 
presentation event of the 

inaugural Singapore Corporate 
Awards (SCA). The SCA consists 
of the Annual Report Award 
(ARA), �est Managed �oard 
Award, �est Investor Relations 
Award and the Chief Financial 
Officer (CFO) of the Year Award.

n On 23 November, the Institute’s 
�anking and Finance Committee 
had a dialogue session with the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore 
(MAS) on issues such as the 
adoption of IAPS 1004 “The 
Relationship between �anking 
Supervisors and �anks’ External 
Auditors” in Singapore and �asel 
II Implementation.

n On 12 July and 6 November, the 
Institute had dialogue sessions 
with ACRA to update on the 
upcoming activities by ACRA and 
recent initiatives and upcoming 
activities by ICPAS.

n On 23 November, the Institute’s 
Secretariat attended a Focus 

Group Discussion on FRS 32 
and Co-Operatives organised 
by the Ministry of Community 
Development, Youth and Sports 
to discuss the issues pertaining 
to FRS 32 in relation to Co-
operatives in Singapore.

n During the year, representatives 
from the Insolvency Practices 
Committee had dialogue sessions 
with the Insolvency & Public 
Trustee’s Office (IPTO) to provide 
their views and inputs to the 
proposed Insolvency Act. 

n On 25 April, the Institute’s 
Ethics Committee engaged 
the Accounting and Corporate 
Regulatory Authority’s Public 

top
Seminar by FSRC Committee.
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Accountants Oversight Committee 
(PAOC) Ethics Sub-Committee in 
a dialogue meeting to discuss the 
possible adoption in Singapore 
of the International Federation 
of Accountants (IFAC) revised 
Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants in Singapore.

n On 17 October, representatives 
from the Insurance Committee 
engaged representatives of the 
Monetary Authority of Singapore 
(MAS) & representatives of 
the Life Insurance Association 
(LIA) to discuss the proposed 
supplementary audit to be 
conducted on the processes and 
controls relating to Investment-
Linked Life Insurance Policies 
(ILP) sub-funds.  

n On 26 July, representatives from 
the Institute’s Public Accounting 
Practice Committee met the Law 
Society and provided input on 
the Law Society’s initiatives on 
changes to the second signatory 
function for the client account.

n On 1 November, the Institute 
received Mr Paul Thompson 
[Technical Manager, Small 
and Medium Practices (SMP) 
Committee] of the International 
Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC). The purpose of the visit 
was to provide an update on 
IFAC’s activities in the areas of 
the SMPs and Small and Medium 
Entities (SMEs).

n On 4 September and 3 October, 
representatives from the 
Institute’s Taxation and Levies 
Committee, Public Accounting 
Practice Committee and 
accounting firms attended the 
IRAS-ICPAS Dialogue Session 
to provide feedback on major 
implementation issues that 
might arise from the proposed 
new Form C filing deadline.

n On 12 October, the Institute’s 
Taxation and Levies Committee 
had a dialogue session with 
the Inland Revenue Authority 
of Singapore (IRAS) to seek 
clarification, views and to relay 
feedback on various tax issues 
such as tax implications of 
FRS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement,  
benefits-in-kinds and sales of 
shares in subsidiary companies 
by approved holding companies.  

n The seminars organised by the  
 Technical Division in 2006   
 include:

°  Insolvency Practitioners 
Association of Singapore 
Limited (IPAS): “A 
Roundtable Discussion 
On Recent Trends & 
Developments in Corporate 
Insolvency Law” seminar in 
January

°  “Auditors and Audit 
Committees – Partners in 
Corporate Governance” forum 
in March

°  IPAS: “Chapter 11 and 
Accreditation of Insolvency 
Practitioners - A US Judge’s 
Perspective” seminar in May

°  Management Accounting 
Committee: “Towards An 
Era of Data and Text Mining 
for Competitive Strategy” 
seminar in May

°  IPAS: “Forensic Accounting 
– Lessons From China 
Aviation Oil: From �oon to 
�ane” seminar in June

°  Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
Committee: “Challenges 
Facing Professional 
Accountants in �usiness 
(PAI�s)” cocktail cum panel 
discussion in September

°  Taxation & Levies Committee: 
“United Project Consultants 
Pte Ltd v Leong Kwok Onn” 
seminar in October

°  IPAS: “Official Launch of 
IPAS and 1st Annual IPAS 
Conference” in November

°  Corporate Governance 
Committee: “Corporate 
Governance & Disclosures – 

membership services
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Seminar on “Essentials for Public Accountants”.
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membership services

Asia Evidence and Enterprise 
Risk Management” seminar in 
November

°  “Preparation and Filing of 
Financial Statements in X�RL” 
seminar in November

°  CFO Committee: “Earnings 
Management & Capital Market 
Incentives” seminar in 
December

Professional Voice
As the representative voice of the 
accountancy profession, ICPAS 
is actively involved in activities 
and initiatives where both the 
Institute’s and members’ views and 
concerns are heard. Such activities 
in 2006 include: 

Local Activities:
n 3 – 10 June 
 International Study Tour cum 

Seminar by Eastern India 
Regional Council of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India 
Eastern India Regional Council 
of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India organised 
an international study trip for 

its members to Malaysia and 
Singapore.  A half-day seminar 
was also held with Ms Yim Kam 
May, ICPAS Council Member, as 
the Guest-of-Honour. 

n 9 September
 88th ASEAN Federation of 

Accountants (AFA) Council 
Meeting 

 Hosted by ICPAS, the meeting 
was attended by numerous 
delegates from the region. The 
AFA Seminar was also organised 
in conjunction with the meeting.

n 15 November 
 Dialogue with the Community 

Outreach Group leader, Mr S. 
Iswaran, Minister of State for 
Trade and Industry 

 Mr Iswaran, together with  
Mr Michael Palmer, MP for Pasir 
Ris-Punggol GRC (Punggol East) 
met ICPAS members in a lively 
dialogue session to channel 
feedback and suggestions to 
the ministries and government 
agencies.

Overseas activities:
n 3 – 4 March 
 86th ASEAN Federation of 

Accountants (AFA) Council 
Meeting

 Hanoi, Vietnam
 ICPAS attended the meeting in 

Hanoi to discuss the proposal of 
Iranian Association of Certified 
Public Accountants (IACPA) 
to become an AFA Associate 
member as well as, the progress 
of the ASEAN-wide MRAs for 
various professional services, 
amongst other issues.

n July 
 International Federation of 

Accountants’ (IFAC’s) Global 
Forum

 Hong Kong
 ICPAS President, Mr Tan �oen 

Eng, and Vice President, Dr 
Ernest Kan attended the first 
global forum, co-hosted by the 
Hong Kong Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and the 
Confederation of Asian and 
Pacific Accountants.  

top
88th AFA Council Meeting.

bottom
Dialogue Session with Community 
Outreach Group leader, Mr S. 
Iswaran, Minister of State for 
Trade and Industry. 
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n 10 November 
IFAC Council Meeting
Istanbul, Turkey 
ICPAS was represented at the 
Council Meeting by its President, 
Mr Tan �oen Eng, and Vice 
President, Dr Ernest Kan. 

Communications
Members of ICPAS are regularly 
updated on the Institute’s news and 
happenings through:

ICPAS ePublication, 
The weekly electronic newsletter 
continues to give ICPAS members a 
quick round-up of what’s happening 
at the Institute, technical updates, 
as well as news updates in the 
accountancy profession during 
the week.  In the 2006 Members’ 
Satisfaction Survey, the ICPAS 
ePublication is voted by some 82% 
of the respondents as ‘important’ 
and ‘very important’ mode of 
communication.

Singapore Accountant journal 
Singapore Accountant is a bi-
monthly publication that goes 

out to all members. A total of 
93.1% of respondents to the ICPAS 
members’ satisfaction survey rated 
the Singapore Accountant as an 
important mode of communication.  

ICPAS Connect 
The newsletter was discontinued in 
August, with June/July issue as its 
last issue.  It has been replaced by 
ICPAS ePublication since then.

membership services
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Social and Networking
The Social and Sports Committees 
organised the following social 
activities in 2006:
n Streamlining Document 

Management for Accounting in 
February 

n Communicate Success with Your 
Image in March, April and May

n Guided Tour to Chek Jawa and 
Sensory Trail at Pulau Ubin in 
June

n Tips & Tricks for Microsoft Office 
in July

n Manners and Etiquette in August
n Jewellery Making Introductory 

Workshop in September
n Speechcraft 2006 in October
n ICPAS Annual Dinner & Dance 

2006 – “Retro Fever” in October
n Networking Night – “Casino 

Royale” in November
n Family Day Movie – “Open 

Season” in December

Membership Benefits 
Members of ICPAS enjoy the
following benefits:
n Exclusive use of CPA Singapore 

designation for full members
n Singapore Accountant journal
n ICPAS ePublication (e-newsletter)
n Online members’ handbook 
n CPE seminars at members’ rate
n Networking opportunities for 

members at ICPAS events
n Interactive homepage – enabling 

online update of members’ 
mailing address and online 
payment of fees and CPE courses 

n Free email account
n ICPAS Group Insurance Scheme
n Special tie-ups and privileges 
 for members 
n Library services 
n CPA Members Lounge at the SAA 

City Campus

The Institute will continuously 
review and improve on its services 
and strive to increase the value of 
the ICPAS membership.

membership services
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membership
profile

membership profile

Membership by Class

Practising Member

Non-practising Member

Provisional Member

Members-in-retirement

Honorary Member

807 (4.5%)

12,832 (70.7%)

4,103 (22.6%)

400 (2.2%)

1 (0%)

18,143 (100%)TOTAL

Membership by Gender

Female

Male

11,321 (62.4%)

6,822 (37.6%)

18,143 (100%)TOTAL

Membership by Age Distribution

≤ 30 years

31 – 40 years

41 – 50 years

51 – 60 years

≥ 61 year

3,338 (18.4%)

7,892 (43.5%)

3,955 (21.8%)

2,323 (12.8%)

635 (3.5%)

18,143 (100%)TOTAL
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community
responsibility

community responsibility

The Institute believes that its responsibilities and concerns should extend beyond the accountancy 
profession to benefit the community at large.  As such, the Institute maintains an active involvement in 
community service to contribute meaningfully to society.

Community Service
The Institute’s Community Service 
Committee organises activities 
that benefit the less fortunate such 
as the elderly, handicapped and 
underprivileged children.  Such 
activities include the Yellow Ribbon 
Fundraising event in February, 
the annual “Reach-Out” event in 
November and the Christmas Outing 
in December.

The Singapore Accountancy Academy 
(SAA) supported the Disabled 
People’s Association (DPA) by 
collecting 5-cent coins from its staff 
and students in the months of July 
and August.  This fundraising event 
not only garnered the support of 
the staff and students but it also 
served in creating awareness among 
the members of public about the 
Disabled People’s Association. 

The Academy also raised funds for 
the Society for the Prevention of 
Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) by selling 
animal-themed merchandise, which 
included badges, pens, memo pads, 
T-shirts etc. in October. 

The Institute continued to support 
the Spastic Children’s Association of 
Singapore through purchase of its 
greeting cards.

Education
ICPAS places great importance on 
the advancement of accountancy 
education and training in Singapore.  
To encourage accountancy students 
to strive for academic excellence, 
the Institute sponsors scholarships 
and awards.

For students at the Nanyang �usiness 
School, Nanyang Technological 
University (NTU), the Institute 

top left
Movie screening of Monster House. 

top right
Reach-Out 2006.

bottom
ICPAS Scholarship award recipient.
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sponsors awards such as the ICPAS 
Gold Medal for the most outstanding 
student throughout the course of 
his/her study, the ICPAS �ook Prize 
for the student with the highest 
aggregate marks in accountancy 
subjects in his/her final year and the 
ICPAS Gold Medal for the top student 
in the NTU M�A (Accountancy) 
programme.  The Institute also 
sponsors the ICPAS Gold Medal for 
the most outstanding graduate from 
Singapore Management University’s 
�achelor of Accountancy programme 
and Master of Professional 
Accounting Programme.

The Institute also presents the 
ICPAS Scholarship Awards to 
two second-year and two third-
year students from the Nanyang 
�usiness School at NTU each year.  
From 2004, ICPAS also presents 
ICPAS Scholarship Awards to 
two third-year and two fourth-
year students from the School 
of Accountancy at Singapore 
Management University (SMU).  

community responsibility

At the same time, SAA offered 
attractive scholarships for two 
prestigious Accountancy programs, 
especially for NTUC union members 
and SAFRA members in 2006.  These 
are full scholarships offered for 
the ICPAS/ACCA Joint Examination 
Scheme program and CATS-ACCA 
program.  The scholarships cover 
all course fees, course materials, 
textbooks and revision kits.  
 

bottom
Yellow Ribbon Fundraising event.

left
Career Fair 2006.
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Mark of
  Excellence
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ACCA Committee

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Chairman Ng Song Piak
Ho Mun-Tuke, Don – Dy Chairman Quek Shi Kui 
Chia Chiew Meng, Robin Ramasamy, Jayapal
Lee Chee Wung Tan Lye Heng, Paul
Lim Lay Lian, Jocelyn Yim Kam May

The ACCA Committee played a central role in enhancing the ICPAS-ACCA Joint Professional Examination Scheme.

The student society, Certified Accountants Student’s Society of Singapore (CASSOS), has been renamed ACCA / ICPAS 
Student Society (AISS) and a new AISS Committee was formed after the AGM and student election. A series of student 
activities was organised, which were all well-received by students. 

The ACCA Committee will continue to be involved in the AISS activities in order to assist the ACCA student body as a whole.

In November, the ICPAS Examination and Student Registry launched a new website to cater to the needs of ICPAS/
ACCA Joint Scheme students. The website contains important information of interest to both existing and potential 
ACCA students. The website also provides e-services such as online student fees payment and online student requests.

ICPAS and ACCA continued to work closely to promote the Joint Scheme through joint career talks and student events 
such as Student Orientation Day. ICPAS has increased its marketing efforts for the Joint Scheme which led to an 
increase in the number of student registration. 

Accounting Standards Committee

Fang Ai Lian – Chairperson  Lam Kai Cheung, Gordon (resigned  31.01.07)
Akhtar, Sajjad  Low Eng Huat, Peter
Ang Hao Yao  Ng Eng Juan
�oon Yoon Chiang  Ng, Katherine
Chia Siew Eng  Sivaram, Nagaraj
Chin Foong Yoke, Evelyn  (appointed 01.02.07) Tan �oon Siong
Foong Daw Ching  Tan Hock Neo, Pearl
Iyer, Shanker  Tan Siah Yong
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest  Tham Sai Choy
Kon Yin Tong 

The Committee continues to play a pivotal role in working with the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance 
(CCDG) in reviewing new accounting proposals and setting accounting standards, i.e. Financial Reporting Standards 
(FRSs). The FRSs are virtually converged with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and International 
Accounting Standards (IASs) issued by the International Accounting Standards �oard (IAS�).

committees review

committees
review
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As of 31 December, the following were issued as FRSs and Interpretations subsequent to the Institute’s 
recommendations to the CCDG:

n FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation;

n FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and a complementary amendment to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements - Capital Disclosures;

n INT FRS 106 Liabilities from Participating in a Specific Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment;

n INT FRS 107 Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies;

n INT FRS 108 Scope of FRS 102;

n INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives; and

n INT FRS 110 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment;

During the year, the Committee also deliberated on the following IFRSs, amendments to IASs/IFRSs, revised 
implementation guidance and Interpretations issued by IAS�/IFRIC. Corresponding revisions/amendments were made 
to FRSs and INT FRSs:  

n IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions;

n IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements;

n Revisions to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts Implementation Guidance;

n Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates;

n Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – The Fair Value Option;

n Amendments to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts relating 
to Financial Guarantee Contracts; and

n Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards relating to comparative disclosures for 
IFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources; and

n IFRS 8 Operating Segments

The following IAS� exposure drafts were considered by the CCDG with representations and recommendations from the 
Committee and representatives from the relevant industries:

n IAS� ED FRS 8 Operating Segments;

n ED INT FRS Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment;

n ED Proposed Amendments to FRS 102 Share-Based Payment – Vesting Conditions and Cancellations;

committees review
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n ED Proposed Amendments to FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements – A Revised Presentation;

n ED Proposed Amendments to FRS 23 Borrowing Costs;

n ED Proposed Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements – Financial Instruments Puttable at Fair Value and Obligations Arising on Liquidation;

n ED INT FRS D20 Customer Loyalty Programmes;

n ED INT FRS D19 The Asset Ceiling: Availability of Economic Benefits and Minimum Funding Requirements; and

n ED INT FRS D18 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Committee reviewed the above proposals and prepared comment letters taking into account comments received. 
The comment letters were forwarded to the Council for approval/comments and to the CCDG for submission to the IAS� 
as appropriate.

At its meetings, the Committee made presentations on the IAS�/IFRIC exposure drafts, to which CCDG members and 
representatives are invited. The purpose of the presentations is to facilitate understanding of the technical issues and 
implications of the accounting standards and proposals.

The Committee also provided views on the following:

n IAS� Discussion Paper Management Commentary;

n IAS� Discussion Paper Measurement Bases for Financial Accounting – Measurement on Initial Recognition;

n IAS� Staff Questionnaire on Financial Instruments;

n Due Process of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) – Draft Handbook; and

n IAS� Discussion Paper on Preliminary Views on An Improved Conceputal Framework For Financial Reporting: The 
Objective of Financial Reporting and Qualitative Characteristics of Decision-useful Financial Reporting Information.

During the year, the Institute had also withdrawn RAP 3 Reporting Value Added Information and RAP 4 Accounting for 
Financial Futures.

Accreditation  Committee

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Pang Yang Hoong
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian
Kon Yin Tong 

The Committee held several meetings during the year to review several accreditation processes. These include the 
ACCA new syllabus and the negotiation of the mutual recognition agreement (MRA) with the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI). In respect of the latter, the Institute held a teleconference with ICAI and the President 
and its Secretary of ICAI also visited Singapore. 

committees review
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ATTS Committee

Ong Chin Guan, Noris – Chairman Lee Kian Meng, Ernest 
Tan �oen Eng – Dy Chairman Yee Fook Hong
Chee Kim Hock (appointed 22.1.07) 
N Vimala Devi 

During the period, the Committee met to deal with the policy and operational aspects of the Association of Taxation 
Technicians Singapore and to review the results of the ATTS examinations.

A total of 4 forums were held during the period for the benefit of the ATTS students and members. �esides inviting 
tax practitioners as speakers, the Committee had also invited IRAS to lead the tax forums. To reach out to more tax 
support staff, the forums were opened to staff from CPA firms. The total turnout at the 4 forums was 652 participants. 

A survey on determining the training needs of taxation staff in CPA firms was carried out. A Sub-Committee led by Mr 
Yee Fook Hong has been formed to look into various ways to provide more support to taxation staff in 2007 based on 
the results of the survey and feedback from ATTS examiners, assessors and lecturers. 

The ATTS Annual Reception 2006 was held in May to present First and Second Place Awards, and Merit Certificates to 
students who performed well in the June and December 2005 examinations.

Auditing and Assurance Standards Committee

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Chairman  Lee, Paul
Yeoh Oon Jin – Dy Chairman Siew Wun Mui
�armaky, Shariq  Tan Wee Khim
Chin, Robin Tay, Joanne
Christie, Hamish Thein, Reggie
Foo See Liang Toh, Joseph
How, Derek (resigned 20.11.06) Wong-Yeow Anna Irene
Lam Chien Ju (appointed 20.11.06) Yeo Ek Khuan
Lee, Maria

During the year, the Institute’s Council, on the recommendation of the Committee, approved the following:

n Revised Singapore Standard on Auditing (SSA) 700 The Independent Auditor’s Report on a Complete Set of General 
Purpose Financial Statements

n Revised SSA 200 Objective and General Principles Governing An Audit of Financial Statements
n Revised SSA 210 Terms of Audit Engagements
n Revised SSA 560 Subsequent Events
n SSA 701 Modifications to the Independent Auditor’s Report 
n Revised SSA 800 The Independent Auditor’s Report on Special Purpose Audit Engagements
n Renaming of Statements of Auditing Practice (SAPs) (except SAP 11, SAP 19, SAP 24 and SAP 25) and the sample 

auditor’s reports in the Appendices of SSAs that do not have an equivalent auditing pronouncement from the 
International Auditing and Assurance Standards �oard (IAAS�) of the International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC). These auditing pronouncements would be referenced as Audit Guidance Statements (AGSs).

n Preface to Audit Guidance Statements

committees review
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n Revised Auditors’ Supplementary Report for Banks (AGS 1 Sample Auditor’s Reports)
n Revised Auditors’ Supplementary Report for Merchant Banks (AGS 1)
n Auditors’ Supplementary Report for Members of CDP, SGX-DC, SGX-ST and SGX-DT (AGS 1)
n Reports on the Internal Control Procedures of Service Organisations (AGS 8)
n Revised CAAS sample Auditor’s Report on Monthly Gross Revenue (AGS 1)
n Sample Auditor’s report on Auditor’s Report on Depository Agent for the Central Depository (Pte) Ltd (AGS 1)
n Sample Auditors’ Report for Banks on Exemption for Non-compliance with FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 

and Measurement pursuant to Section 201 (14) of the Singapore Companies Act (AGS 1)
n Revised SAP 19 Guidance to Auditors on Money Laundering and Terrorism Financing
n Revised sample Auditor’s report on fruit machine operations (AGS 1)
n Revised guidance on Audit of Solicitors’ Accounts (AGS 5)
n Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP) 12 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations for 

financial statements prepared under Part IX of the Fifth Schedule to the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) 
(Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005 (recommended by Corporate Finance Committee)

The following auditing pronouncement was withdrawn:

n Sample Auditor’s report on Transfer of shares to Central Depository (Pte) Ltd [previously found in Appendix 2(I)  
of SSA 800]

As of 31 December, the Committee was considering issues in relation to proposed new or revised auditing 
pronouncements on the following matters:

n Comfort Letters and Other Assistance for Public Offerings of Equity Securities in Singapore
n Materiality in the Identification and Evaluation of Misstatements
n Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures (Other than Those Involving Fair Value Measurements and 

Disclosures)
n The Audit of Group Financial Statements
n The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance
n Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report
n Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matters Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report
n The Independent Auditor’s Report on Other Historical Financial Information
n The Independent Auditor’s Report on Summary Audited Financial Statements
n Programme for improving the clarity of SSAs: Preface to Singapore Standards on Quality Control, Auditing, Assurance 

and Related Services; SSA 240 (Redrafted) The Auditor’s Responsibility to Consider Fraud in an Audit of Financial 
Statements; SSA 300 (Redrafted) Planning an Audit of Financial Statements; SSA 315 (Redrafted) Understanding the 
Entity and Its Environment and Assessing the Risks of Material Misstatement; and SSA 330 (Redrafted) The Auditor’s 
Procedures in Response to Assessed Risks

n Related Parties
n Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit
n Evaluation of Misstatements Identified during the Audit 
n Communication with Those Charged with Governance
n The Relationship �etween �anking Supervisors and �anks’ External Auditors

During the year, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the approval of Council, provided its 
comments on various exposure drafts issued by the IAAS� of IFAC.

In November, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the Corporate Finance Committee and the 
approval of Council, provided its comments on the Monetary Authority of Singapore’s (MAS) first “Policy Consultation on 

committees review
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Amendments to the SFA and the FAA”. The public consultation paper arose from MAS’ review of the Securities and Futures 
Act (SFA) and the Financial Advisers Act (FAA), and proposes the introduction of a representative notification framework 
and the conferment of certain powers on MAS in its supervision of markets and clearing facilities in emergencies.

During the year, representatives from the Committee engaged regulatory agencies and other interested parties, including 
the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority, the Monetary Authority of Singapore and the Singapore Investment 
�anking Association, in dialogue meetings to discuss regulatory developments and auditing related matters.

Banking & Finance Committee

Fang Ai Lian – Chairperson Nixon, Dominic
Chua Kim Chiu – Dy Chairman Ng Geok Mui
Cheng Ai Phing Ong Ai �oon
Desai, Prakash Ambelal Woo, Wilson
Leong Kok Keong Yap Chee Meng

The Committee worked with the Accounting Standards Committee in considering the following IAS� accounting 
standards:

n ED of Proposed Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 
Statements – Financial Instruments Puttable at Fair Value and Obligations Arising on Liquidation

Separately, the Committee also formed sub-committees to deliberate on the changes to the draft FSI Q� Auditor’s 
Report proposed by MAS.

The Committee provided its comments on the following MAS Consultation Papers:

(a) MAS Consultation Paper on Recognition of �ilateral Netting for Capital Adequacy Purposes;
(b) MAS Consultation Paper on Revisions to MAS Notice 609/1002; 
(c) MAS Consultation Paper on Draft Finance Companies (Information Relating To Financial Statements) Regulations 

2006; and
(d) MAS Consultation Paper on the Draft �anking (Amendment) �ill 2006.

In its continual efforts to engage the relevant authorities to discuss and resolve issues in the banking and finance 
industry, the Committee had a dialogue session in November with the Monetary Authority of Singapore (MAS) on the 
Adoption of IAPS 1004 “The Relationship between Banking Supervisors and Banks’ External Auditors” in Singapore, MAS 
Notice 612, Issues on �asel II Implementation and suggested proposed amendments to the Companies Act to empower 
MAS to grant exemption to merchant banks and finance companies under Section 201(14) of the Companies Act.

MAS had since agreed to the adoption of IAPS 1004 in Singapore. The equivalent of IAPS 1004, SAP 1004 was issued 
by the Institute on 8 January 2007.

Board of Education and Examiners 

Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian – Chairperson Lian Wee Cheow
Chew Tong Gunn Loh Hoon Sun
Choo Teck Min Pang Yang Hoong
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During the year the �oard of Examiners and the Education Committee were merged and renamed as �oard of Education 
and Examiners.

The ICPAS Professional Examination is the professional examination for overseas accounting graduates and business 
graduates with an accounting major to qualify as ICPAS members.  The program has expanded significantly and tripled 
its revenue in its second year.  With the Mutual Recognition Agreement with CPA Australia and the Association of 
Certified Chartered Accountants, ICPAS continues to see high demand for this program from both overseas as well as 
local graduates.

On 6 December, ICPAS and SIM University (UniSIM) signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to collaborate 
in the area of training and continuing education, with the objective of nurturing more accounting professionals 
in Singapore.  Under this collaboration, UniSIM will offer certificate courses from its School of �usiness to ICPAS 
Professional Examination candidates who require additional subjects.

CAT Committee

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Lim Kim Tong
Khoo Ho Tong – Dy Chairman Tjioe Miouw Hoen
Lim Cheng Lian, Angela 
 
In 2006, there were a total of 1174 new student members joining the CATS/ACCA joint scheme, bringing the total 
number of registered student members to 2368. 

The number of graduates was 452 and there was a steady increase in the number of CATS Full members. The current 
membership strength is 440 Ordinary and Senior Members.

SAA saw an increase in its CAT market share due to increases in the number of international students and company-
sponsored participants under the SDF scheme.  The new initiative to offer CAT programme at Millennia Institute was 
launched in 2006 with the first batch of students taking the T5 examination in December.
				 

Certification Committee 

Themin Suwardy – Chairman Lee Jeng Wah
Thio Tse Gan 
 
The Committee was formed in January 2007, together with another committee – Panel of Advisors to oversee the ICPAS 
/ IDA �usiness Analytics & Reporting (�AR) Course, with the Certification Committee overseeing the quality control 
and certification and Panel of Advisors looking after the content development.

The terms of reference of Certification Committee are to maintain and control high standards for the whole 
certification process for �AR course and ensure the relevance and quality of the project is congruent with the 
objectives of the course.

The inaugural meeting was held jointly with the members of the Panel of Advisors on 9 January 2007.		The Certification 
Committee reviewed the project works submitted by the participants. The Committee was satisfied that the 
participants were able to demonstrate the knowledge acquired from the �AR course in real-life, practical business 
solutions. The Certification Committee also evaluated the assessment and certification criteria and has recommended 
improvements for future intakes.
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CFO Committee

Soh Gim Teik – Chairman Koo Tse Chia
Goh, Grace Loo Wen Lieh
Jong Voon Hoo Tan Poh Lee, Paul

The Committee was officially launched on 27 June at a press conference at the Raffles Hotel to address the professional 
needs of CFOs. It aims to discuss high level and relevant issues affecting such members and gather feedback from them 
on pertinent technical and professional issues including new laws, regulations, standards and guidelines. It also aims 
to organise conferences, workshops, round-table discussions, forums, dialogue sessions and networking opportunities 
amongst such members in industry, trade and commerce.

The Committee organised its inaugural networking event – Challenges facing professional accountants in business 
(PAI�s) – A Cocktail-cum-Panel Discussion on 26 September. 

During the year, representatives of the Committee also participated in the panel discussion of a joint seminar with NTU 
on “Earnings Management and Capital Market Incentives”. 
 

China Committee

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Lim Lian Soon
Sitoh Yih Pin – Dy Chairman Wong Lai Yong
Teo Meng Hua – Dy Chairman Yong Cherng Nan
Chew Soon �eng Yow Hon Meng, Jason
Khoo Ho Tong 

The Committee hosted the following visits:

n China Delegation from Suzhou Industrial Park and Suzhou Municipal and District Government
 A group of 20 officials from the Suzhou Industrial Park and Suzhou Municipal & District Government visited the 

Institute on 8 June. There was an active exchange of accounting practices between the Committee members and 
visitors during the session.  

n China Delegation from National Accounting Institute, Beijing
 The Committee hosted a visit for a group of six senior officials from the National Accounting Institute, �eijing on 

14 November. It was a fruitful visit as there was a mutual exchange of information on tax matters between the 
accountants from the two institutes.

n China Delegation from Shanghai Municipal Audit Bureau
 Seven senior officials from the Shanghai Municipal �ureau visited the Institute on 18 December.  Their visit 

provided a good opportunity to foster closer ties between ICPAS and the �ureau.
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Community Service Committee

Wong Lai Yong – Chairperson Loh �oon Leng, David
Wong Kian Kok – Dy Chairman Tan Lee Choo
Chia Chiew Meng, Robin Tang Shiuh Huei
Lee Lai Ken, Helen Wong Lee Eng, Elsie
Ling Ing Hea, Grace Yeoh Siew Huay, Micolle

The Committee organised the following community service projects in 2006:

n yellow Ribbon Fundraising Event
 40 members attended the Yellow Ribbon Fundraising Event on 11 February organised jointly by the Institute’s 

Community Service Committee and Yellow Ribbon Fund. The members had an exclusive peek behind bars as they 
toured the rehabilitative enterprises including the housing units, laundry workshop and multimedia hub within 
prisons ground. They gained useful insight to the rehabilitative programmes that reforming inmates undergo and 
also witnessed the various talents of inmates who put up entertaining live band performance and songs.		 
 
The event was graced by Mr Yatiman Yusof, Senior Parliamentary Speaker, Ministry of Information, Communication 
and the Arts.

n Speechcraft Programmes at Prison School
 Following the success of the six-lesson speechcraft workshop held at the Prison School since year 2004, the 

Committee organised two rounds of speechcraft programme jointly with the CPA Toastmasters Club in June and 
December. The programme was designed to help participants develop public speaking and presentation skills and 
received good response. 20 members from the Prison School attended each programme. 

n Movie Screening – “Monster House”
 On 2 September, 100 children from several homes were invited to a movie screening held at Suntec City Mall. More 

than 20 helpful volunteers were on hand to keep the children entertained. �efore the screening, the children were 
treated to a sumptuous lunch at a fast food joint. 

n Reach-Out 2006
 The Annual Reach-Out was held on 12 November at the Marina Mandarin Singapore. 300 residents from ten 

charitable organisations were invited to a Chinese sit-down lunch. The guests particularly enjoyed the performances 
by Erh Gu and sang along a medley of Cantonese and English songs put up by the various performers. They were 
also entertained with the Chinese Face Changing performance. 

n Christmas Outing 
 On 7 December, the Institute shared Christmas joy with 80 residents from three charitable homes. The residents 

cruised down Orchard Road to see the Christmas lightings before having an enjoyable and scrumptious dinner at 
Holiday Inn Park View. Children from Canossaville Children’s Home put up a lively performance during the dinner. 
Residents were also entertained by Mr Paul Low and his three-piece band performance.

n Practical Book-keeping Lessons
 The Community Service Committee organized 12 lessons on practical book-keeping for the Tanah Merah Prison 

inmates from July to December.

committees review



ICPAS ANNUAL REPORT 2006/2007page 44

Corporate Finance Committee

Mah Chee Kheong, Chaly – Chairman Tan Eng Seong, Phillip
Ng Geok Mui Tham Sai Choy
Tan Chian Khong Wong Kian Kok

The Committee considers issues relating to corporate finance matters, typically by discussing and providing input on 
matters relating to corporate finance to the regulatory authorities and other corporate finance/investment banking 
organisations.  It also works closely with other committees within the Institute on matters pertaining to accounting 
and auditing standards and provides input on professional issues to the standards setters.

During the year, the Institute issued an exposure draft of a guidance to members on the preparation of combined 
financial statements for entities under common control for the purpose of inclusion in prospectuses prepared for initial 
public offerings. 

Subsequent to the comment period, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the input from the 
Accounting Standards Committee, finalised and issued the guidance, entitled Statement of Recommended Accounting 
Practice (RAP) 12 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations for financial statements prepared under Part IX of 
the Fifth Schedule to the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005.

In November, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the Auditing and Assurance Standards 
Committee and the approval of Council, provided its comments on the Monetary Authority of Singapore’s (MAS) first 
“Policy Consultation on Amendments to the SFA and the FAA”. The public consultation paper arose from MAS’ review 
of the Securities and Futures Act (SFA) and the Financial Advisers Act (FAA), and proposes the introduction of a 
representative notification framework and the conferment of certain powers on MAS in its supervision of markets and 
clearing facilities in emergencies.

Corporate Governance Committee

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Chairman Kon Yin Tong
Mak Yuen Teen – Dy Chairman Lee Kin Wai
�owman, �ill Ramasamy, Dhinakaran
Jothidas, A Yee Lat Shing, Tom
Kamis, Rohan  

The Committee continued to draw on the experience of auditors, accountants, consultants, company directors 
and other experts to raise awareness of corporate governance issues and to promote fairness, transparency and 
accountability in the conduct of business. 

During the year, the Institute issued a publication entitled “The Work Of The Audit Committee – A Simple Guide”, 
based on the deliberations and contributions by the Committee. The publication was distributed to all local practising 
and non-practising members from August 2006 onwards.

The Committee also issued a press release on behalf of the Institute on matters pertaining to corporate governance 
- the importance of the use of appropriate accounting treatment for revenue recognition and the importance of 
reflecting transactions in accordance with substance over form. The press release also dealt with the roles and 
responsibilities of directors and management and reiterated that the Institute expects all its members to comply fully 
with the Institute’s Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics.  
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The Committee continues to discuss the development of new best practice guidelines to promote sound corporate 
governance in companies. Representatives from the Committee continue to contribute articles to the “Corporate 
Governance” column of the Singapore Accountant.  

The Committee acknowledges the importance of its role in the development, implementation and promotion of sound 
corporate governance and will continue to participate actively in projects associated with its objectives and to 
organise relevant seminars, talks, forums and dialogues on corporate governance. During the year, representatives from 
the Committee spoke at a corporate governance seminar organised by the Committee entitled “Seminar on Corporate 
Governance & Disclosures – Asia Evidence and Enterprise Risk Management”.

CPA Australia Committee

Loh Hoon Sun – Chairman  Lim Kim Tong
�owman, �ill Seah, Linda
Chan Lai Koon Tan �oen Eng
Han Lih Lih 

ICPAS and CPA Australia had jointly commissioned a four-episode TV program entitled “�usiness Dashboard” on 
Channel NewsAsia (CNA) in July. 

The first episode of the program focused on business continuity, risk management and succession planning. Episode 
2 looked at how companies plan business growth, and examined organic and non-organic growth. Episode 3 looked 
at sustainability accounting, corporate social responsibility and green accounting. Lastly, episode 4 covered global 
accounting and the harmonisation of accounting standards.

The CPA Forum 2006 was held at Swissôtel The Stamford, Raffles City Convention Centre, on 11 August. A panel of 
distinguished business leaders discussed the issues raised in “�usiness Dashboard” and how they affect businesses 
and the wider economy. The event was graced by Guest-of-Honour, Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State for Finance 
& Transport. 

Another successful enterprise is the joint monthly Dinner Talks held at the Conrad Centennial Singapore.  

On the academic front, the Singapore Accountancy Academy (SAA) launched two successful intakes of the ICPAS 
Diploma in Professional Accounting leading to the University of Queensland’s (UQ) �achelor of Commerce (Accounting) 
degree. The CPA Australia scholarship, established by CPA Australia - Singapore Division, in partnership with the 
Faculty of �usiness, Economics and Law, UQ and ICPAS, was also awarded in 2007. 

Disciplinary Committee

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Sitoh Yih Pin
Fang Ai Lian Yee Lat Shing, Tom
Khoo Ho Tong Yeo Hian Heng, Gillian
Loh Hoon Sun		 

The Committee dealt with 10 cases submitted by the Investigation Committee.
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Ethics Committee

Teoh Leong Kay, Danny – Chairman  Kon Yin Tong
Ang Peng Koon, Patrick Quek Shi Kui
Cheong Fook Seng, Anthony Soh Chung Hian, Daniel
Ho Mun-Tuke, Don Tay Joo Soon
Khoo Ee �in Yuen Ewe Jin, Phillip

During the year, the Committee engaged the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority’s Public Accountants 
Oversight Committee (PAOC) Ethics Sub-Committee in a dialogue meeting. The meeting discussed the possible 
adoption in Singapore of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) revised Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants.

On 29 December, the International Ethics Standards �oard for Accountants (IES�A), an independent standard-
setting board within the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC), issued an exposure draft (ED) updating and 
strengthening the independence requirements contained in the IFAC Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. The 
comment period for the ED ends on 30 April 2007. The Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the 
approval of Council, would be providing a comment letter on the ED.

Examination Committee

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Chairman Ho Yew Kee
Chee Hay Kheong, Daniel Lim Lian Soon

The Committee continued to play its role in the implementation and administration of the Joint Schemes with the 
ACCA for its Professional Entry Route (PER) and Certified Accounting Technician (CAT) qualifications.

The Committee worked closely with the Singapore examining team to provide feedback and suggestions to ACCA on 
ways to improve administrative processes, in the hope that the examining team could focus their attention on the 
setting of the papers and thus enhance the quality of the Singapore adapted papers. 

The Committee continued to approve both the appointments and reappointments of examiners, assessors and 
inspectors for both ACCA and CAT examinations. A new inspector for ACCA Paper 3.6 was appointed. For ACCA Paper 
2.2, both examiner and assessor were newly appointed. New appointment was also made for CAT T9 assessor. 

A representative from the Committee continues to attend the Law and Tax Panel Meetings conducted by ACCA UK with 
all the examiners on the coming examination.
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Financial Statements Review Committee 

Tan Eng Seong, Phillip – Chairman Tan Ching Siew
Cheng Ai Phing – Dy Chairperson Tan Kay Yeow, Douglas
Chia Soo Hien, Frankie Tan Swee Ho
Goh Swee Hong Tan Tong Kai
Leaver, David Anthony  Teo Chai Choo
Lee Jee Cheng, Philip Tham Chee Soon
Ling Soon Hwa, Philip Toh Kian Leong, Joseph
Lo Wei Min Wong Kian Kok
Ooi Chee Kar Wong Siew Eng
Soh Kok Leong Yeo �oon Chye 

157 sets of financial statements were reviewed. These included newly-listed public companies and a selection of 
private limited financial statements. Gazetted financial statements relating to property developments were also chosen 
for review during the year. 

These financial statements were reviewed by members working under the following three sub-committees:

Sub-Committee Chairman/Chairperson Number of Financial 
   Statements Reviewed
Published Accounts  Phillip Tan Eng Seong 76
Private Limited Accounts Cheng Ai Phing 74
Gazetted Accounts Lo Wei Min  7
   157

In the course of its reviews, the Committee has highlighted to practising members areas where the presentation or 
content of the financial statements fall short of compliance with the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) 
and other promulgations. Generally the standard of disclosure in the financial statements has improved. However, it 
was noted that for certain sets of financial statements reviewed, practising members were found to be not conversant 
with the FRS and pronouncements issued by the Institute in respect of the Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA). 
These practising members were recommended to attend training courses to update themselves on the Standards. In 
addition, seven members were found wanting in the discharge of their professional duties and subsequently referred to 
the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) for further action. 

In view of the substantial changes to the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards which are effective for financial 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005, practising members are advised to take note of the changes and ensure 
their compliance in the relevant financial statements.

On 5 September 2006, the Committee conducted a half-day seminar on observations compiled from its reviews over the 
past eighteen months. This seminar was well attended by more than 400 participants from CPA firms, statutory boards 
and various industries. Mr Phillip Tan, the Committee Chairman welcomed the participants and gave an overview of the 
Committee’s work process. Mr Joseph Toh gave a presentation on compliance with FRS 1,2,7,12,14,16 to 19, 24, 36,37 
and SSA 570 & 700. Mr David Leaver shared his views on FRS 103, 27 and 28. Ms Cheng Ai Phing, Deputy Chairperson 
of the Committee highlighted salient points in FRS 21, 32 and 39. The seminar ended with a panel discussion whereby 
the Chairman and the speakers fielded questions from the participants. Generally, the participants were appreciative 
of the technical issues discussed in the seminar and hoped that the Committee would conduct a full day seminar in 
future with more detailed illustrations.
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General Purpose & Finance Committee

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Seow Teow Han, John
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest 

During the year, the Committee met to deal with administrative and financial matters relating to the Institute. The 
Committee reviewed the annual budget, annual salary adjustments for staff as well as the restructuring of divisions 
within the Secretariat resulting in three new divisions namely IT, Communications, Membership Marketing & Services 
being set up.

The Committee considered and made recommendations to the Council on the presentation of ICPAS Gold/Silver/Merit 
awards to five members who had made significant contributions to the Institute and/or the community. It also 
awarded eight ICPAS Scholarship Awards to accountancy undergraduates from Nanyang Technological University and 
Singapore Management University. The awards and scholarships were presented at the Institute’s Annual Dinner on 27 
October.

The Committee reviewed and recommended to the Council a proposal to purchase 6 Raffles Quay #23-00 for SAA’s 
City Campus as the SAA’s presence in the business district was a welcomed one by members and students. �y having 
a permanent foothold in the city, SAA would not be subjected to high lease renewal or disruption to classes due to 
relocation. More importantly, SAA would be able to keep cost down in the current dynamic property market.

The Committee reviewed and approved the first major renovation of the Secretariat office at CPA House since moving 
in, in December 1998.

The Committee also agreed to sign a memorandum of co-operation with Vietnam Association of Certified Public 
Accountants (VACPA). 

Information Technology Services Committee

Tang Kok Kwai – Chairman  Lim Shien Ching, Henry
Lee Jeng Wah – Dy Chairman Seow Teow Han, John
Chee Hay Kheong, Daniel Sia Siew Kien
Chin Chen Keong, John  Tan Wee Peng, Kelvin
Chong Kek Sing  Themin Suwardy
Hooi Cheng Cheong, Paul  Thio Tse Gan
Wee Phui Gam

Discussions were held to review the needs of the Institute to meet the needs of a growing CPA membership, student 
registration and enrolment. During the year, the following systems were completed:  

n Examination and Student Registration (ESR) Web Portal which was launched in December 2006.

n Online IT request queue and tracking module to service the needs of ICPAS staff.

n Young Accountants Group (YAG) portal was established to engage young accountants in their 20’s and 30’s.

During the launch of the Intelligent Nation 2015 master plan (iN2015) by Infocomm Development Authority (IDA), 
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the Institute announced the program, �usiness Analytics and Reporting – using Excel, Specialist Level to increase 
the use of infocomm in the accounting profession.  The Institute is also proud that this was the first course to be 
selected under IDA’s inskills@work program whereby ICPAS members will enjoy a 50% grant for the course.  This is a 
groundbreaking course which will arm ICPAS members with powerful analytical and reporting tools and enable them to 
transition from a stewardship role to that of a strategic partner to the company’s growth and development. 

Insolvency Practices Committee

Ho Mun-Tuke, Don – Chairman Iyer, Ramasamy Subramaniam
Tam Chee Chong – Dy Chairman  Reid, Timothy James (appointed 20.11.06)
Aw Eng Hai Seshadri Rajagopalan
Chan Ket Teck Tan Ng Kuang, Nicky
Chay, Peter  Tay Swee Sze
Chee Yoh Chuang Yong Cherng Nan

During the year, the representatives of the Committee provided its views and inputs to the Insolvency & Public 
Trustee’s Office (IPTO) on the proposed Insolvency Act. �riefly, the proposed Insolvency Act merges the provisions for 
individual bankruptcy contained in the current �ankruptcy Act and the provisions for corporate winding up, judicial 
management and insolvency contained in the current Companies Act. The views and input by representatives of the 
Committee contained elements of practical expediency and technical merits of the proposed new provisions bearing in 
mind developments in insolvency law in countries like Australia and the United Kingdom. The Committee will continue 
to cater to the continuing professional education and training needs of ICPAS members on insolvency matters.

Representatives of the Committee also played a significant role in the official launch of the Insolvency Practitioners 
Association of Singapore Limited (IPAS) and its inaugural IPAS Conference on 2 November.  They provided invaluable 
advice and supported the organising of the inaugural conference by inviting insolvency practitioners to attend the 
event and were also involved as chairpersons, speakers and panellists during the conference.

Insurance Committee

Tan Eng Seong, Phillip – Chairman Ngo Siew Pod
Faulkner, Paul Sim Hwee Cher
Hoon Ching Sing, Jeremy Yee Lat Shing, Tom
Lim, Andrew Young, Kenny
Mak Keat Meng 

The Committee continues to participate actively and contribute positively to the insurance industry by providing 
feedback and recommendations on various industry matters to insurance bodies and regulators, whilst handling issues 
raised by members.

During the year, the Committee conducted a dialogue session with the Insurance Department of the Monetary 
Authority of Singapore (ID-MAS) on the developments in the insurance sector such as the new Risk �ased Capital 
Regulations Framework, and the accounting and auditing aspects of the insurance business.

In August 2006, the Committee provided its feedback to ID-MAS on its Consultation Paper “Review of Regulatory 
Requirements for Sub-Funds of Investment-Linked Life Insurance Policies”. The Committee also formed a sub-
committee to discuss the proposed supplementary report on the processes and controls relating to Investment-Linked 
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Life Insurance Policies (ILP) sub-funds. The report would subsequently be considered for adoption by MAS as a 
supplementary report that firms reviewing the processes and controls of the ILP sub-funds should issue.

Investigation Committee

Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Chairman Loh Yoon Min
Seow Teow Han, John – Dy Chairman Ong Sim Ho
Kamis, Rohan Lee Chow Soon (Lay Person)
Lee Chee Wung
 
Durng the year, the Committee referred 7 cases to the Disciplinary Committee, of which 3 Non-practising CPAs were 
found guilty of misconduct relating to insider trading, 1 Non-practising CPA was found guilty of misconduct relating to 
making a false statement and cheating under the Securities and Futures Act and Penal Code respectively and 3 Non-
practising CPAs had failed “to satisfy a judgment debt or has, individually or as a partner, made an assignment for the 
benefit of creditors or has, under any resolution of creditors or order of the court or any deed or document, had his 
estate placed in liquidation for the benefit of creditors or has made any arrangement for the payment of a composition 
to creditors”.

In November, due to a potential conflict of interest or absence in respect of certain members, a separate Investigation 
Committee comprising the following members was set up to hear 4 cases:  

Seow Teow Han, John – Chairman Ong Sim Ho
Kamis, Rohan Ter Kim Cheu (Lay Person)
Lee Chee Wung 

All 4 cases were referred to the Disciplinary Committee, of which 1 Non-practising CPA was found guilty of misconduct 
relating to insider trading, 1 Non-practising CPA and 1 Provisional Member were found guilty of breaching Rule 39.5 
of the ICPAS (Membership and Fees) Rules, as they had not been discharged from their bankruptcy status, and 1 
Practising CPA was in respect of negligence by omission.

Management Accounting Committee 

Chan Yoke Kai – Chairman Ghosh, � C
Jothidas, A – Dy Chairman Hwang Soo Chiat
Chee Ai-Ping, Sera Kwan Chee Wai, James
Cheng Wai Fung Low Peng Nam, Eric
Chong Kum Fatt, Michael Navaratnam, V
Chung Lai Hong 

During the year, the Committee deliberated and recommended to the Institute the withdrawal of the following 
Statements on International Management Accounting Practice (IMAPs) on basis of convergence with IFAC:

n IMAP 2 – The Capital Expenditure Decision
n IMAP 3 – Currency Exposure and Risk Management
n IMAP 6 – Post Completion Review
n IMAP 7 – Strategic Planning for Information Resource Management
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In May, the Committee organised a seminar “Towards an Era of Data-Mining for Competitive Strategy”. The guest 
speakers were Dr Koh Hian Chye, Associate Professor and Dean of the School of �usiness in SIM University, Mr Pradeep 
Suryanarayan, Director Strategic Services, Fractal Private Limited and Mr Edwin Jude Rozells, Analytical Consultant, 
SPSS Singapore. The speakers shared with participants the nature of data mining, discussed their methodologies and 
tools as well as how some industries such as the telecommunications and banking industries tap on the use of data 
mining applications. 
 
The Committee would continue to take an active role in the promulgation of management accounting guidelines 
in Singapore and organise seminars and workshops for the benefit of ICPAS members, especially those relevant to 
management accounting.

Membership Committee 
 
Seow Teow Han, John – Chairman Wong Lai Yong
Foo Siang Guan, Ron – Dy Chairman Yang Ching Chao
Khoo Ho Tong – Dy Chairman Yeoh Oon Jin
 
The Committee is responsible for the review of membership matters and to make monthly recommendations to Council 
on the admission of provisional and non-practising members, fellows, membership reclassifications, resignations, 
reinstatements, removal of members for non-payment of annual subscription fees and other related matters. 
 
During the year, the Committee had reviewed and simplified the application forms for admission as provisional 
members and non-practising members. The forms are available online on the Institute’s website. The Committee also 
initiated automatic admission to provisional membership for ICPAS/ACCA joint scheme graduates subject to them 
fulfilling certain terms and conditions.

Panel of Advisors

Sia Siew Kien – Chairman Jerry The Wie Djien
Thio Tse Gan 

The Committee was formed in January 2007, together with Certification Committee to oversee the ICPAS / IDA 
�usiness Analytics & Reporting (�AR) Course. The Panel of Advisors looks after the content development, while the 
Certification Committee oversees the quality control and certification aspects.

The terms of reference of Panel of Advisors are to provide advice, review and propose enhancement to the curriculum, 
propose admission requirements to the �AR course and any derivatives of it.

The inaugural meeting was held jointly with the members of the Certification Committee on 9 January 2007. The 
Committee was satisfied with the rigorous design of the curriculum and its strong emphasis on practical relevance. 
Some refinement of the curriculum would be introduced to enhance and safeguard the unique value of �AR course and 
its certification. 
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Public Accounting Practice Committee

Kon Yin Tong – Chairman Liew Geok �ee, Lisa
Lee Chee Wung – Dy Chairman Luar Eng Hwa
Teoh Leong Kay, Danny – Dy Chairman Seow Teow Han, John
Ho Lon Gee Tan Kian Leng, Clement
Khoo Ho Tong
 
The Committee considers issues relating to the public accounting arena, and participates in dialogue sessions with the 
Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority (ACRA) and other relevant authorities, where the interests of practising 
members are not addressed elsewhere.

On 26 July, representatives from the Committee met the Law Society and provided input on the Law Society’s 
initiatives on changes to the second signatory function for the client account.

During the year, the Institute, on the recommendation of the Committee and the approval of Council, provided its 
comments on the Ministry of Finance’s (MOF) “Public Consultation on Limited Partnerships �ill 2006”. A Limited 
Partnership (LP) is a structure comprising at least one general partner with unlimited liability and limited partners 
with limited liability. The introduction of LPs in Singapore serves to provide local and foreign investors in Singapore 
greater flexibility in business structures.

On 3 October, representatives from the Committee and accounting firms attended an IRAS-ICPAS dialogue session to 
provide feedback on major implementation issues that might arise from the proposed new Form C filing deadline.

On 1 November, the Office �earers, representatives from the Committee and Secretariat staff met Mr Paul Thompson, 
Technical Manager, Small and Medium Practices (SMP) Committee of the International Federation of Accountants 
(IFAC). The purpose of the visit was to provide an update on IFAC’s activities in the areas of the SMPs and Small and 
Medium Entities (SMEs).

Singapore Accountancy Academy Committee  

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Quek Shi Kui
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest – Dy Chairman Seow Teow Han, John
Chew Tong Gunn  Sitoh Yih Pin
Khoo Ho Tong  Yang Ching Chao

The Committee provided guidance and direction to SAA in its collaborations with local institutions and overseas 
partners.  SAA will be working closely with local education institutions to provide quality professional training 
opportunities to the students.  SAA has successfully branched into new markets in collaboration with our overseas 
partners and has successfully maintained a sizable presence in the international student market.

Due to overwhelming response from students and ICPAS members, SAA has exceeded the capacity of its premises at 
OU� Centre.  SAA has moved to the newly acquired City Campus at 6 Raffles Quay from January 2007.
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Singapore Accountant Editorial Board

Tan �oen Eng – Chairman Low Kee Yang
Tan Hun Tong – Dy Chairman Shee Ping Fatt, Alfred
Kan Yaw Kiong, Ernest  Sitoh Yih Pin
Koh Hian Chye Williams, Mitchell
Kon Yin Tong 

Singapore Accountant is a bi-monthly journal of the Institute. The journal not only keeps members abreast of the 
Institute’s news and happenings, it also informs members on new developments and updates in the accountancy 
profession. The Editorial �oard is committed to maintaining the standards of the journal, ensuring that the publication 
is informative and relevant, and always giving members a quality read.
 
To make the journal more reader-friendly, it was revamped and unveiled in the January/February 2006 issue. The new 
journal boasts a contemporary new look and enhanced contents. New columns like “People” were introduced to feature 
prominent members who hold senior positions as well as interviews with chairpersons of ICPAS Technical Committees.

In the Members’ Satisfaction Survey conducted in 2006, an encouraging 93% of respondents rated the journal as an 
important mode of communication and 95% of them are satisfied with the journal.

Social Committee

Yim Kam May – Chairperson Lo Wei Min
Wong Lai Yong – Dy Chairperson Loo Wen Lieh
Heng Yeow Meng, Michael Seah Gek Choo
Ho Nai Chuen Tang Shiuh Huei
Koh �oon Ngee, Andrew Wong Lee Eng, Elsie

The Committee organised the following social activities:

n Streamlining Document Management for Accounting
 A seminar on “Streamlining Document Management for Accounting” was organised jointly with Fuji Xerox 

Singapore on 11 February. About 30 members attended the educational session and learnt about the breakthrough 
technologies in document management through various software and web-based solutions, which aimed at 
improving work productivity and business profits.

n Communicate Success with your Image
 Members embarked on an “Image Management” journey through a four-workshop series of social grooming. 

The workshops themed “Communicate Success with your Image” were a success as they drew an average of 30 
participants per session, over the months of March, April and May under the training of Ms Suzenne Zheng from 
First Impressions Image International. 

n Guided Tour to Chek Jawa and Sensory Trail at Pulau Ubin
 2 June was a memorable day for some 40 members and their families who joined the guided tour to Chek Jawa. 

Participants had the rare opportunity to experience the beauty of Chek Jawa, which comprised six major ecosystems 
in one small area. After the walk at Chek Jawa, participants were treated to a scrumptious feast at one of the 
seafood restaurants in Ubin Village. The tour ended with a sensory trail at Pulau Ubin. Participants were able to 
touch, smell and even taste some of the plants that they had heard so much about. 
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n Tips & Tricks for Microsoft Office
 Two seminars on “Tips & Tricks for Microsoft Office” were organised on 30 June and 7 July respectively, with about 

160 attendees at SAA City Campus. The members were treated to a night of fun and discovery as the speaker guided 
them through the various tips and tricks of Microsoft Office; which aimed at improving efficiency, effectiveness, as 
well as presentation skills. 

n Manners and Etiquette 
 Following the success of the “Communicate Success with Your Image” workshops, a “Manners and Etiquette” 

workshop was organised on 18 August, which focused on social etiquette, table manners and personal style that 
encourage self-confidence in life-skills. 

n Jewellery Making Introductory Workshop 
 To cater to members interested in jewellery making, a Jewellery Making Introductory Workshop was organised on 

8 September. During the workshop participants were introduced to the different type of materials for handmade 
jewellery and learnt two basic methods of jewellery making; the Looping and the Stringing method. 

n Speechcraft 2006
 Organised jointly with the CPA Toastmasters Club, the annual Speechcraft programme was held over four sessions 

in the month of October. Speechcraft 2006 was conducted with the objective of helping members develop effective 
communication skills. �esides building a foundation in public speaking skills, members were also trained on how 
to give interesting speeches and presentations. The last session of the seminar coincided with the Club’s 19th 
Anniversary and the induction of new members on 31 October.

n ICPAS Annual Dinner & Dance 2006 – “Retro Fever”
 Over 300 guests and members attended ICPAS Annual Dinner and Dance 2006 – “Retro Fever” on 27 October, at 

Marina Mandarin, Singapore. The Guest-of-Honour, Mrs Lim Hwee Hua, Minister of State for Finance and Transport, 
delivered the keynote address. Five members were presented with the ICPAS Medal awards in recognition of their 
outstanding contributions to the Institute, while six Committee members were presented with Certificates of 
Appreciation for their long services rendered.  

n Networking Night – “Casino Royale”
 More than 120 members attended the Institute’s Networking Night on Friday, 17 November. �efore the screening of 

James �ond latest movie, “Casino Royale”, Florence Ng, Managing Director Singapore of Michael Page International 
gave a presentation on “Career Development in the �uoyant Economy”. Participants also had an opportunity to 
socialise with each other over dinner.

n Family Day Movie – “Open Season”
 On 2 December, more than 100 members attended the Institute’s Family Day Movie – the screening of “Open 

Season”. Members were given goodies bags and treated to a magic performance while the children received candies 
from “Santa Claus”.		

Sports Committee

Yim Kam May – Chairperson Voo Chih Yeong
Neo Peck Hwee, �elinda Wee �ee Lay, May
Phua Puay Heng, David Yeo, Rankin �randt 
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n CPA Games
 A total of 14 games were played in this year’s CPA Games including a new game - Paintball. PricewaterhouseCoopers 

once again emerged as the overall Champion for CPA Games 2006. The Games concluded successfully with the 
Award Presentation cum Closing Dinner held on 3 November at the M Hotel. 

n Inter-Professional Games
 This year’s Inter-Professional Game, hosted by the Institute of Engineers Singapore, was actively participated by 

the six professional bodies of the architects, doctors, engineers, lawyers, surveyors and accountants. The Games 
ended with a closing dinner cum prize presentation ceremony held at The Singapore Island Country Club on 18 
November.  The Institute proudly bagged the first place for basketball, badminton, bowling, table tennis and 
soccer, and emerged as the overall Champion for this year’s Inter-Professional Games through the ardent support 
and active participation from members.

Task Force On Pre-Admission Course
 
Cheng Ai Phing – Chairperson Lim �oon Cheng
Khoo Teng Aun Tan Mui Siang, Patricia
Lee Chee Wung Toh Kian Leong, Joseph
Lian Wee Cheow  
 
The Task Force was established in 2005 to review the existing Pre-admission course particularly the Ethics 
component as well as to evaluate the relevance of the Pre-Admission course in today’s context and make necessary 
recommendation for improvements.
 
The review process of the Pre-Admission Course entailed the extensive benchmarking and research on the best practices 
and membership admission criteria of established accounting professional bodies in UK, US, Australia and Hong Kong, 
including programmes put in place by these professional bodies to help their practising members in better discharging 
their roles and responsibilities. These also included comprehensive studies on the procedures to be undertaken by aspiring 
public accountants prior to them obtaining their practising licenses with the respective accounting bodies. 
 
During the year, the Committee met 2 times and held two meetings and shared experiences with the Executive 
Director, Admission, Member Services and Student Education & Training of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants (HKICPA) and the President and the Executive Director, Education, of Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Scotland (ICAS) respectively.
 
The Committee has completed its review of the Pre-Admission Course and has made its findings and recommendations 
to the Institute’s Council and ACRA for their consideration.
 

Taxation and Levies Committee

Ong Chin Guan, Noris – Chairman Ng Teck Mong, Albert
Tan �oen Eng - Deputy Chairman Sandison, David Jackson
�oon Suan Lee Sum Yee Loong
Khoo Ho Tong Tan, Angela
Liew, Winnie Wong Kok Yee
Lo Ngai Hung Wong Lai Yong
Low Weng Keong Yee Fook Hong
Miao, Nicholas 
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The Committee continues to deal with the interpretation and practice aspects of tax issues raised by members and 
in this respect, it engages the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (IRAS) in dialogue meetings regularly. The 
Committee sought clarifications, rulings and views and relayed feedback to the IRAS on various tax issues, such as 
matters pertaining to tax implications of FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, benefits-in-kind 
and sale of shares in subsidiary companies by approved holding companies. The Committee also participated in IRAS’ 
feedback session on record keeping and filing requirements for companies. 

During the year, the Committee also reviewed and submitted responses to various IRAS’ circulars and consultation 
papers, highlighting the pertinent practical issues arising therein to IRAS. The Committee also provided its comments 
on consultation papers issued by the Ministry of Finance.

The Committee continues to engage members on topical tax issues and organised a seminar on “United Project 
Consultants v Leong Kwok Onn” case to discuss the developments of the precedent case in Singapore in respect of a tax 
agent’s duty of care.

Representatives from the Committee continued to contribute articles to the “Tax Focus” column of the Singapore 
Accountant.  

young Accountants Group Committee

Wang, Jack – Chairman Kwan, James
Heng, Michael Lee �oon Teck
Ho, Alex (appointed 26.12.06) Lim, Jocelyn

The Committee was officially launched in June 2006 at a press conference at the Raffles Hotel. This Committee aims 
to proactively engage and provide young accountants in their 20s and 30s with opportunities for professional and 
leadership developments, so as to help them rise to leadership positions in the organisations they serve.

The Committee organised its inaugural event – Networking with Industry Leaders at the China Club with generous 
support from various industry leaders, which includes CEO of Westcomb Financial Group, Co-founder of Vanden Advisors 
LLP, and CFO of Delifrance Asia Ltd, to share with participants their career paths and their achievements.

During the year, Mr Jack Wang, the Chairman of the Committee, was featured in a Channel NewsAsia program, 
“Strength In Numbers”, commissioned by the Institute, which aims to improve the image of accountants and promote 
accountancy as a career.  Mr Lee �oon Teck, a committee member, also represented the Committee at a Career Seminar 
for third year accountancy students at NTU. 
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technical pronouncements

technical
pronouncements
31 December 2006

Financial Reporting Standards (FRS)
Issued by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance (CCDG)

No.  Title   IAS/IFRS Equivalent Effective Date 

Preface to Financial Reporting Standards   Yes 1.1.03
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements Yes 1.1.03
Guidance Notes    – –
FRS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 1.1.05
FRS 2 Inventories   2 1.1.05
FRS 7 Cash Flow Statements  7 1.1.95
FRS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates  
 and Errors   8 1.1.05
FRS 10 Events after the �alance Sheet Date 10 1.1.05
FRS 11 Construction Contracts  11 1.1.97
FRS 12 Income Taxes   12 1.4.01
FRS 14 Segment Reporting   14 1.1.00
FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment  16 1.1.05
FRS 17 Leases   17 1.1.05
FRS 18 Revenue   18 1.1.97
FRS 19  Employee �enefits    19 1.10.00
FRS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of  
 Government Assistance  20 1.1.85
FRS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 21 1.1.05
FRS 23 �orrowing Costs   23 1.1.97
FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures  24 1.1.05
FRS 25 Accounting for Investments  25 1.1.88
FRS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement �enefit Plans 26 1.1.88
FRS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 27 1.1.05
FRS 28 Investments in Associates  28 1.1.05
FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies 29 1.4.01
FRS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures  31 1.1.05
FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation 32 1.1.05
FRS 32 (Revised) Financial Instruments: Presentation 32 1.1.07
FRS 33 Earnings Per Share   33 1.1.05
FRS 34 Interim Financial Reporting  34 1.10.01
FRS 36 Impairment of Assets  36 1.7.04
FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 37 1.10.00
FRS 38 Intangible Assets   38 1.7.04
FRS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 39 1.1.05
FRS 40  Investment Property   40 1.1.07
FRS 41 Agriculture   41 1.10.01
FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards IFRS 1 1.1.04
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Financial Reporting Standards (FRS)(cont’d)

No.  Title   IAS/IFRS Equivalent Effective Date 

FRS 102 Share-based Payment  IFRS 2 1.1.05
FRS 103 �usiness Combinations  IFRS 3 1.7.04
FRS 104 Insurance Contracts   IFRS 4 1.1.05
FRS 105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and  
 Discontinued Operations  IFRS 5 1.1.05
FRS 106  Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources IFRS 6 1.1.06
FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures IFRS 7 1.1.07

Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards (INT FRS)
Issued by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance (CCDG)

    SIC/IFRIC Equivalent Effective Date

Preface Preface to Interpretations of Financial Reporting Standards – –
INT FRS 7 Introduction of the Euro  7 1.2.03
INT FRS 10 Government Assistance – No Specific Relation to  
 Operating Activities   10 1.2.03
INT FRS 12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities 12 1.2.03 

 Amendment to Scope of INT FRS 12 (issued March 2005)  
 – for reference
INT FRS 13 Jointly Controlled Entities – Non-Monetary  13 1.2.03 
 Contributions by Venturers  
INT FRS 15 Operating Leases – Incentives  15 1.2.03
INT FRS 21 Income Taxes – Recovery of Revalued  
 Non-Depreciable Assets  21 1.2.03
INT FRS 25 Income Taxes – Changes in the Tax Status of an  
 Enterprise or its Shareholders  25 1.2.03
INT FRS 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving  
 the Legal Form of a Lease  27 1.2.03
INT FRS 29 Disclosure – Service Concession Arrangements 19 1.2.03
INT FRS 31 Revenue – �arter Transactions Involving  
 Advertising Services   31 1.2.03
INT FRS 32 Intangible Assets – Web Site Costs 32 1.2.03
INT FRS 101 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration  IFRIC Interpretation 1 1.9.04 
 and Similar Liabilities  
INT FRS 104 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease IFRIC Interpretation 4 1.1.06
INT FRS 105 Rights to Interests Arising From Decommissioning,  IFRIC Interpretation 5 1.1.06 
 Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
INT FRS 106 Liabilities Arising From Participating in a Specific  IFRIC Interpretation 6 1.12.05 
 Market – Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
INT FRS 107 Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29  IFRIC Interpretation 7 1.3.06 
 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
INT FRS 108 Scope of FRS 102   IFRIC Interpretation 8 1.5.06
INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives IFRIC Interpretation 9 1.6.06
INT FRS 110 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment IFRIC Interpretation 10 1.11.06
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Exposure Drafts of Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations of Financial Reporting 
Standards (ED FRS / ED INT FRS) 
Issued by the Council on Corporate Disclosure and Governance (CCDG)

   Comment Period Expiry

ED INT FRS – D20 Customer Loyalty Programmes (issued September 2006) 6.10.06
ED INT FRS  The Asset Ceiling: Availability of Economic �enefits and Minimum  
– FRS 19 Funding Requirements (issued September 2006) 30.9.06
ED Proposed  Financial Instruments: Presentation and FRS 1 Presentation of  
Amendments to  Financial Statements – Financial Instruments Puttable at Fair Value and  
FRS 32 Obligations Arising on Liquidation (issued July 2006) 23.9.06
ED Proposed  �orrowing Costs (issued May 2006) 29.8.06 
Amendments to  
FRS 23
ED Proposed  Presentation of Financial Statements – A Revised Presentation  
Amendments to (issued March 2006)  17.6.06 
FRS 1
ED Proposed  Share-based Payment  - Vesting Conditions and Cancellations  
Amendments to  (issued February 2006) 2.5.06 
FRS 102
ED INT FRS Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment  (issued January 2006) 28.2.06
ED FRS Operating Segments (issued January 2006) 19.4.06

Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA)

No.  Title   ISA Equivalent Effective Date 
     (Annual periods  
     beginning on or  
     after)

Preface to Singapore Standards on Quality Control, Auditing, Assurance and  
Related Services    Yes Sep 96
Glossary of Terms    Yes -
Framework for Assurance Engagements   Yes Audit report date:  
     1.1.05

100 – 199  Introductory Matters  
SSA 100 (superseded by SSAE 3000)  
SSA 120 (superseded by Framework for Assurance Engagements)  

200 – 299  General Principles and Responsibilities  
SSA 200 Objective and General Principles Governing an Audit of  
 Financial Statements  200 15.12.04
SSA 200 (Revised) Objective and General Principles Governing an Audit of  200  15.12.05 
 Financial Statements  (Revised)
SSA 210 Terms of Audit Engagements  210 15.12.04
SSA 210 (Revised) Terms of Audit Engagements  210  
    (Revised) Deferred
SSA 220 Quality Control for Audit Work  220 1.1.97
SSA 220 (Revised) Quality Control for Audits of Historical Financial Information  220 
    (Revised) 15.6.05
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Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA)(cont’d)

No.  Title   ISA Equivalent Effective Date 
     (Annual periods  
     beginning on or  
     after)

SSA 230 Documentation   230 15.12.04
SSA 230 (Revised) Audit Documentation   230 
    (Revised) 15.6.06
SSA 240 The Auditor’s Responsibility to Consider Fraud in an Audit of  
 Financial Statements  240 15.12.04
SSA 250 Consideration of Laws and Regulations in an Audit of  
 Financial Statements  250 15.12.04
SSA 260 Communications of Audit Matters with Those Charged  
 with Governance   260 15.12.04

300 – 499  Risk Assessment and Response to Assessed Risks  
SSA 300 Planning an Audit of Financial Statements 300 15.12.04
SSA 310 (withdrawn)  
SSA 315 Understanding the Entity and Its Environment and Assessing the  
 Risk of Material Misstatement  315 15.12.04
SSA 320 Audit Materiality   320 15.12.04
SSA 330 The Auditor’s Procedures in Response to Assessed Risks 330 15.12.04
SSA 400 (withdrawn)  
SSA 401 (withdrawn)  
SSA 402 Audit Considerations Relating to Entities Using Service Organisations 402 15.12.04

500 – 599  Audit Evidence  
SSA 500 Audit Evidence   500 15.12.04
SSA 501 Audit Evidence – Additional Consideration for Specific Items 501 15.12.04
SSA 505 External Confirmations  505 15.12.04
SSA 510 Initial Engagements – Opening �alances 510 15.12.04
SSA 520 Analytical Procedures  520 15.12.04
SSA 530 Audit Sampling and Other Means of Testing 530 15.12.04
SSA 540 Audit of Accounting Estimates  540 15.12.04
SSA 545 Auditing Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 545 15.12.04
SSA 550 Related Parties   550 15.12.04
SSA 560 Subsequent Events   560 15.12.04
SSA 560 (Revised) Subsequent Events   560  Audit report date: 
    (Revised) 31.12.06
SSA 570 Going Concern   570 15.12.04
SSA 580 Management Representations  580 15.12.04

600 – 699  Using Work of Others  
SSA 600 Using the Work of Another Auditor 600 1.1.97
SSA 610 Considering the Work of Internal Auditing 610 15.12.04
SSA 620 Using the Work of an Expert  620 15.12.04
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Singapore Standards on Auditing (SSA)(cont’d)

No.  Title   ISA Equivalent Effective Date 
     (Annual periods  
     beginning on or  
     after)

700 – 799  Audit Conclusions and Reporting  
SSA 700 The Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements 700 1.4.02
SSA 700 (Revised) The Independent Auditor’s Report on a Complete Set of  700 Audit report date: 
 General Purpose Financial Statements (Revised) 31.12.06
SSA 701 Modifications to the Independent Auditor’s Report 701 Audit report date:  
     31.12.06
SSA 710 Comparatives   710 15.12.04
SSA 720 Other Information in Documents Containing Audited  
 Financial Statements  720 15.12.04

800 – 899  Specialised Areas  
SSA 800 The Auditor’s Report on Special Purpose Audit Engagements 800 1.1.97
SSA 800 (Revised) The Independent Auditor’s Report on Special Purpose  800  Audit report date: 
 Audit Engagements   (Revised) 31.12.06

Singapore Standards on Review Engagements (SSRE)

SSRE 2400 Engagements to Review Financial Statements (previously SSA 910) ISRE 2400 1.1.97
SSRE 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the  
 Independent Auditor of the Entity ISRE 2410 15.12.06

Singapore Standards on Assurance Engagements (SSAE)

SSAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of  ISAE 3000 Audit report date: 
 Historical Financial Information  1.1.05
SSAE 3400 The Examination of Prospective Financial Information  ISAE 3400 1.7.01 
 (previously SSA 810) 

Singapore Standards on Related Services (SSRS)

SSRS 4400 Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding  ISRS 4400 1.1.97 
 Financial Information (previously SSA 920) 
SSRS 4410 Engagements to Compile Financial Information  ISRS 4410 1.1.97 
 (previously SSA 930) 

Singapore Standard on Quality Control (SSQC)

SSQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of  ISQC 1 Date: 15.6.05 
 Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and  
 Related Services Engagements
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Statements of Auditing Practice (SAP)

No. Title    IAPS Equivalent
SAP 1 (withdrawn) –
SAP 2 (withdrawn) –
SAP 3 (withdrawn) –
SAP 4 (withdrawn) –
SAP 5 (withdrawn) –
SAP 5A (withdrawn) –
SAP 5� (withdrawn) –
SAP 5C (withdrawn) –
SAP 5D (withdrawn) –
SAP 6 (withdrawn) –
SAP 7 (withdrawn) –
SAP 8 (withdrawn) –
SAP 9 (withdrawn) –
SAP 10 (withdrawn) –
SAP 11 Review of Interim Financial Information –
SAP 12 (withdrawn) –
SAP 13 (withdrawn) –
SAP 14 (withdrawn) –
SAP 15 (withdrawn) –
SAP 16 (superseded by SAP 1006) –
SAP 18 (withdrawn) –
SAP 19 Guidance to Auditors on Money Laundering and Terrorism Financing –
SAP 21 (superseded by SAP 1005) –
SAP 24 Auditors and Public Offering Documents –
SAP 25 Audit of Listed Companies –
SAP 1000 Inter-�ank Confirmation Procedures 1000
SAP 1001 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1002 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1003 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1005 The Special Considerations in the Audit of Small Entities 1005
SAP 1006 Audits of the Financial Statements of �anks 1006
SAP 1007 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1008 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1009 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1010 The Consideration of Environmental Matters in the Audit of Financial Statements 1010
SAP 1011 (withdrawn) –
SAP 1012 Auditing Derivative Financial Instruments 1012
SAP 1013 Electronic Commerce – Effect on the Audit of Financial Statements 1013
SAP 1014 Reporting by Auditors on Compliance with Financial Reporting Standards 1014
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Audit Guidance Statements (AGS)  
 
No. Title   Effective Date 
    (Annual periods  
    beginning on or after)

Preface to Audit Guidance Statements    –
AGS 1 Sample Auditor’s Reports   –
AGS 2 Verification of Debtor �alances – Confirmation by Direct  
 Communication (previously SAP 1) –
AGS 3 Microfilm Records and Their Audit Implications (previously SAP 3) –
AGS 4 Existence and Valuation of Inventories in the Context of the  
 Historical Cost System (previously SAP 4) –
AGS 5 Audits of Entities in Specific Industries, Professions or Vocations  
 (previously SAP 7, SAP 8 and SAP 9) –
AGS 6 �ank Reports for Audit Purposes (previously SAP 10) –
AGS 7 Value for Money Auditing in a Statutory �oard (previously SAP 18) –
AGS 8 Reports on the Internal Control Procedures of Service Organisations Audit report date: 1.1.07

Exposure Drafts of Singapore Standards on Auditing and Statements of  
Auditing Practice (ED/SSA and ED/SAP)

No. Title

ED/SSA 260 Communication with Those Charged with Governance (issued Nov 2006)
ED/SSA 320 &  Materiality in Planning and Performing an Audit; and Evaluation of Misstatements Identified 
ED/SSA 450  During the Audit (issued Nov 2006)
ED/SSA 600 The Audit of Group Financial Statements (issued March 2006) 
(Revised)
ED/SSA 550 Related Parties (issued January 2006)
ED/SSA Improving the Clarity of Singapore Standards on Auditing (issued November 2005)
ED/SSA 701 & 800 The Independent Auditor’s Report on Other Historical Financial Information and 
 
 The Independent Auditor’s Report on Summary Audited Financial Statements 
 (issued July 2005)
ED/SSA 260 The Auditor’s Communication with Those Charged with Governance (issued April 2005)
ED/SSA 600 The Audit of Group Financial Statements (issued April 2005)
ED/SSA 705 & 706 Modifications to the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report & Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs  
 and Other Matters Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report (issued April 2005)
ED/SSA 320 Materiality in the Identification and Evaluation of Misstatements (issued December 2004)
ED/SSA 540 Auditing Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures (Other than Those Involving Fair Value   
 Measurements and Disclosures) (issued December 2004) 
ED/SAP XX Comfort Letters and Other Assistance for Public Offerings of Equity Securities in Singapore  
 (issued December 2004)

Statements of Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP)

    Last Update

RAP 1A (withdrawn) –
RAP 1 (withdrawn) –
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Statements of Recommended Accounting Practice (RAP) (cont’d)

    Last Update

RAP 2 (withdrawn) –
RAP 3 (withdrawn)  –
RAP 4 (withdrawn)  –
RAP 5 (withdrawn)  –
RAP 6  Accounting and Reporting by Charities Jun 06
RAP 7  Reporting Framework for Unit Trusts May 05
RAP 8 Foreign Income Not Remitted to Singapore Nov 04
RAP 9 IPO Costs  Nov 04
RAP 10 FRS 103 Business Combinations  - Clarification of Transitional Provisions in Singapore Dec 04
RAP 11  Pre-Completion Contracts for the Sale of Development Property Oct 05
RAP 12 Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations for Financial Statements  
 Prepared Under Part IX of the Fifth Schedule to the Securities and Futures  
 (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005 Dec 06

Taxation and Levies Practice Guidelines (TAX)

TAX 1 Clarifications of Tax Matters
TAX 2 Clarifications of Tax Matters
TAX 3 Clarifications of Tax Matters for the period from 1 January 1990 to 30 June 1996
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                  2006 2005
             S$000’s S$000’s

Members’ admission & subscription fees  2,748 2,849
to meet the following expenses :- 
 - Marketing & promotion (402) (181)
 - Journal & publications (273) (277)
 - General & administration (3,196) (2,724)
 - Practice monitoring review  (200) (62)

Other Income (interest, management fee received, etc) 1,382  1,314 

Singapore Accountancy Academy 1,875  2,235
 
Share of Profit of Associates (net of tax) 42   –
 
Income Tax Expense (438) (793)

TOTAL  1,538  2,361 

overview of  
consolidated financial results
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independent auditors’ report  
to members of the institute of certified public accountants of singapore

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (the 
Institute) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) set out on pages 68 to 93, which comprise the balance sheets of 
the Group and the Institute as at 31 December 2006, the income and expenditure statement, statement of changes in the 
accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund and cash flow statement of the Group for the year then ended and a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

The Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
the provisions of the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing, 
implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance 
with Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal controls.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  

Opinion
In our opinion,

(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet of the Institute are properly drawn up in 
accordance with the Societies Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Group and of the Institute at 31 December 2006 and the results, changes in accumulated fund and 
miscellaneous fund and cash flows of the Group for the year ended on that date; and

(b) the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act and provisions of the 
Singapore Companies Act to be kept respectively by the Institute and the subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which 
we are the auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Acts.

EWE, LOkE & PARTNERS
Certified Public Accountants, Singapore

Singapore, 21 February 2007
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 Group Institute
   Notes 2006 2005 2006 2005
    S$ S$ S$ S$

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 3 41,621,206 26,658,702 41,621,206 26,658,702
Associates 4 41,568 – – –
    41,662,774 26,658,702 41,621,206 26,658,702

CURRENT ASSETS      
  
Trade and other receivables 5 1,859,991 718,030 1,873,742 860,979
Fixed deposits 16 857,457 6,361,963 310,086 5,819,923
Cash and bank balances 16 1,340,128 1,448,502 1,260,961 1,364,378
    4,057,576 8,528,495 3,444,789 8,045,280

Less: CURRENT LIABILITIES

Subscription fees received in advance  510,739 300,586 448,433 255,326
Trade and other payables 6 1,642,276 1,008,846 1,630,356 1,006,490
Current portion of bank loan 7 1,333,333 – 1,333,333 –
Course fees received in advance  1,877,361 1,834,070 1,877,361 1,834,070
Finance lease liabilities 8 87,969 92,524 87,969 92,524
Current tax payable  1,043,409 637,407 1,032,619 636,200
    6,495,087 3,873,433 6,410,071 3,824,610

NET CURRENT (LIA�ILITIES)/ASSETS  (2,437,511) 4,655,062 (2,965,282) 4,220,670
       
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES      
  
Non-current portion of bank loan 7 (6,444,445) – (6,444,445) –
Finance lease liabilities 8 (218,389) (306,357) (218,389) (306,357)
Deferred tax liabilities 15 (96,300) (65,500) (96,300) (65,500)
    (6,759,134) (371,857) (6,759,134) (371,857)

NET ASSETS  32,466,129 30,941,907 31,896,790 30,507,515
        

Represented by:      
Accumulated fund 14 32,441,656 30,903,592 31,872,317 30,469,200
Miscellaneous fund 9 24,473 38,315 24,473 38,315
    32,466,129 30,941,907 31,896,790 30,507,515

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

balance sheets
as at 31 december 2006

Mr Tan Boen Eng  Mr John Seow Teow Han
President  Treasurer
Dated: 21 February 2007  Dated: 21 February 2007
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consolidated income and expenditure statement
for the year ended 31 december 2006

     Notes 2006 2005
      S$ S$
    
FEE INCOME FOR THE yEAR 
Members’ annual fees    2,534,130 2,434,760
Members’ admission fees    213,400 414,500
      2,747,530 2,849,260
    
LESS: EXPENDITURE    
Administrative expenses   10 (4,070,693) (3,244,305)
    
DEFICIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    (1,323,163) (395,045)
    
OTHER INCOME   11 1,382,379 1,314,128
      59,216 919,083
    
NET SURPLUS FROM THE ACADEMY   13 1,875,289 2,235,152
    
TOTAL SURPLUS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    1,934,505 3,154,235
    
SHARE OF PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES (NET OF TAX)    41,568 –
    
TOTAL SURPLUS �EFORE TAX    1,976,073 3,154,235
    
INCOME TAX EXPENSE   15 (438,009) (793,571)
    
TOTAL SURPLUS AFTER INCOME TAX     
  TRANSFERRED TO ACCUMULATED FUND    1,538,064 2,360,664
    

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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consolidated statement of changes in 
accumulated fund and miscellaneous fund
for the year ended 31 december 2006

    Note Accumulated Miscellaneous
     Fund Fund Total
     S$ S$ S$
      
Balance at 31 December 2004   28,542,928 47,406 28,590,334
      
Total surplus for the year   2,360,664 – 2,360,664
Net decrease for the year  9 – (9,091) (9,091)
      
Balance at 31 December 2005   30,903,592 38,315 30,941,907
      
Total surplus for the year   1,538,064 – 1,538,064
Net decrease for the year  9 – (13,842) (13,842)
      
Balance at 31 December 2006   32,441,656 24,473 32,466,129

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.
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consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 december 2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.

      2006 2005
      S$ S$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES  
  Total surplus before tax    1,976,073 3,154,235
  Adjustments for:  
    Depreciation for property, plant and equipment    612,079 431,015
    Interest on finance leases    15,224 26,135
    Loan interest    88,234 –
    Interest income    (113,299) (97,449)
    Share of profit of associates    (41,568) –
    Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment    (200) (40)
    Property, plant and equipment written off    983 1,532

OPERATING SURPLUS BEFORE WORkING CAPITAL CHANGES   2,537,526 3,515,428
  Increase in trade & other receivables    (1,197,837) (280,192)
  Increase in subscription fees received in advance    210,153 82,267
  Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables    633,430 (375,971)
  Increase in course fees received in advance    43,292 265,253
  Decrease in miscellaneous fund    (13,842) (9,091)
Cash generated from operations    2,212,722 3,197,694
  Income tax paid    (1,208) (276,617)
Net cash from operating activities    2,211,514 2,921,077
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
  Interest received    169,175 51,883
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (15,575,566) (271,166)
  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   200 189,980
Net cash used in investing activities    (15,406,191) (29,303)
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
  Interest paid on finance leases    (15,224) (26,135)
  Loan interest paid    (88,234) –
  Proceeds from bank loan     8,000,000 –
  Repayment of principal loan    (222,222) –
  Repayment of finance lease liabilities    (92,523) (297,353)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities   7,581,797 (323,488)
  
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS   (5,612,880) 2,568,286
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF yEAR   7,810,465 5,242,179

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF yEAR (NOTE 16)   2,197,585 7,810,465
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the 
Council on 21 February 2007.

1. GENERAL

The Institute is the national organisation of the accountancy profession in Singapore.  It was established in June 1963 
as the Singapore Society of Accountants (SSA) under the SSA Ordinance 1963, then reconstituted and renamed the 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore (ICPAS) on 11 February 1989 under the Accountants Act 1987.  As 
of 1 April 2004, ICPAS is reconstituted as a society under the Societies Act.  The restructuring is primarily a change of 
form for the Institute as ICPAS continues to be the national body for the accountancy profession in Singapore and its 
functions remain unchanged.  The registered office of the Institute is located at 20 Aljunied Road, #06-02 CPA House, 
Singapore 389805.
               
The principal activities of the Institute are those of administering the Institute’s membership, catering for the training 
and professional development of its members.

The consolidated financial statements relate to the Institute and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group) and 
the Group’s interests in associates.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Institute and its subsidiaries have been prepared in accordance with the Societies 
Act and Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 respectively and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (FRS). 

The financial statements, which are presented in Singapore dollars, have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Group and the Institute and are consistent with 
those used in the previous financial year.

The Group has not applied any new/revised FRS or interpretations that have been issued as of the balance sheet 
date but are not yet effective. The initial application of these standards and interpretations are not expected to 
have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

 
2.2 Consolidation

 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies 
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.  The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the 
consolidated financial statements from the date of the control commences until the date that control ceases.  
Intra-group transactions and balances are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

2.2 Consolidation(cont’d)
 
Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over their financial 
and operating policies.  The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method.  The 
consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the profit or loss of the associates from the date 
that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.  When the Group’s share 
of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest (including any long-term 
investments) is reduced to zero and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that 
the Group has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the associate.

Accounting for subsidiaries and associates by the Institute

In the Institute’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries and associates are stated at cost less 
impairment losses.

2.3 Functional and Foreign Currencies

Functional currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency that best reflects the 
economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the Institute and its subsidiaries 
(“the functional currency”).  The consolidated financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars, which is 
the functional currency of the Institute and its subsidiaries.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate in effect 
at the date of the transaction.  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance 
sheet date are translated into the functional currency at the rates ruling at that date.  All exchange differences 
are taken to the income and expenditure statement.

2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment

 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.  

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and costs of bringing 
the asset to working condition for its intended use.  Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are included 
as part of the cost of asset if the obligation for dismantlement, removal or restoration costs is incurred 
as a consequence of acquiring or using the asset.  Expenditure for additions, improvements and renewals 
are capitalised and expenditure for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income and expenditure 
statement.  The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will 
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably.  The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, 
plant and equipment are recognised in the income and expenditure statement as incurred.
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2.4 Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost less 
residual value of the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold buildings 50 years
Furniture and office equipment 3 to 10 years
Computers 3 to 4 years
Renovation 3 to 5 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each 
financial year-end.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is included in the 
income and expenditure statement in the year the asset is derecognised.

2.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment.  If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised in the income and expenditure statement if the carrying amount of an asset or 
its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.  A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset 
group that generates cash flows that largely are independent from other assets and groups.  

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use.  In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset or cash-generating unit.

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss 
has decreased or no longer exists.  An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount.  An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
if no impairment loss has been recognised.  Reversal of impairment loss is recorded in income and expenditure 
statement.  After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s 
revised carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

2.6  Financial Assets

Classification, Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 
held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets as appropriate.  Financial assets are recognised 
on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
financial instrument.

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

2.6  Financial Assets (cont’d)

Classification, Recognition and Measurement (cont’d)

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial asset not 
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.  The Group determines the classification 
of its financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end, with the 
exception that the designation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is not revocable.

The Group does not have the following financial assets: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-
to-maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less impairment losses.  Gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement when the loans 
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

The Group classifies the following financial assets as loans and receivables:
• Cash and cash equivalents
• Trade and other receivables including amounts due from subsidiary and an associate.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest 
rate.  The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of 
the loss is recognised in the income and expenditure statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income and 
expenditure statement to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost 
at the reversal date.

  Derecognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of (a) the 
consideration received and (b) any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised directly in equity is 
recognised in the income and expenditure statement.
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2.7  Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 39 
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (FRS 39).  They are recognised initially at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. An 
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is established when there is evidence that the Group 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the 
allowance is recognised in the income and expenditure statement.  �ad debts are written off as incurred.

2.8  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and deposits with financial institutions.

Cash on hand and in banks and fixed deposits are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 
39.  The accounting policy is stated in Note 2.6.

2.9  Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include trade payables, other amounts payable and interest-bearing loans.  Financial liabilities 
are recognised on the balance sheet when, and only when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.  Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value of consideration 
received less directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income and expenditure statement when the liabilities are derecognised as 
well as through the amortisation process.  The liabilities are derecognised when the obligation under the liability 
is discharged or cancelled or expired.

2.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where, as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are 
reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of 
time value of money is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the expenditure expected 
to be required to settle the obligation.

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

2.11 Leases

 Finance leases

Leases of assets in which the Group assumes substantially the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as 
finance leases.  Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are capitalised at the inception of 
the lease at the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments.  Subsequent to the 
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve 
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.  Finance charges are charged to the income 
and expenditure statement.

 Operating leases

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases.  Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the 
lessor) are taken to the income and expenditure statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to 
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place.

2.12 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured.

Members’ annual and admission fees, students’ fees and students’ administration fees and CATS & ATTS fees are 
recognised when due.

Course fees (from continuing professional education and training) are recognised when the services are rendered.

Advertising income is recognised when advertisement is placed.

Interest income is recognised as the interest accrues based on effective interest rate method unless collectibility 
is in doubt.

Management fee charged to the Academy is recognised when due.

Sundry income, arising mainly from the sale of Members’ Handbooks, are recognised when the goods sold 
are delivered.

2.13 Employee Benefits

Pension Obligations

As required by law, the Group makes contributions to the state pension scheme, the Central Provident Fund (CPF) 
Scheme which is a defined contribution pension scheme.  Contributions to CPF are recognised as expense in the 
period in which the related service is performed.
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2.13 Employee Benefits (Cont’d)

Employee Leave Entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.  The estimated liability 
for leave is recognised for services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. 

2.14 Income Tax

Income tax for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax.  Income tax is recognised in the income 
and expenditure statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which 
case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences at the 
balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements.  Deferred tax is not recognised for the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither 
accounting nor taxable profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to 
the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which temporary differences can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet 
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

3.  PROPERTy, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
     Furniture    
   Freehold Freehold & Office    
       Land       Buildings Equipment Computers Renovation Total
   S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

Cost      
�alance as at 1 January 2005 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,784,828 744,627 876,545 30,166,501
Additions – – 582,597 100,739 – 683,336
Disposals – – (844,510) – (38,606) (883,116)
Written off – – (104,056) (4,940) (25,848) (134,844)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2005 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,418,859 840,426 812,091 29,831,877
      
�alance as at 1 January 2006 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,418,859 840,426 812,091 29,831,877
Additions – 15,122,263 196,142 175,016 82,145 15,575,566
Disposals – – – (1,970) – (1,970)
Written off – – (93,067) (70,408) (435,449) (598,924)
�alance as at 
 31 December 2006 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,521,934 943,064 458,787 44,806,549
      
Accumulated Depreciation      
�alance as at 1 January 2005 – 921,829 1,245,892 585,461 815,466 3,568,648
Depreciation charge for the year – 131,690 167,730 103,490 28,105 431,015
Disposals – – (654,570) – (38,606) (693,176)
Written off – – (102,829) (4,940) (25,543) (133,312)
�alance as at  
 31 December 2005 – 1,053,519 656,223 684,011 779,422 3,173,175
      
�alance as at 1 January 2006 – 1,053,519 656,223 684,011 779,422 3,173,175
Depreciation charge for the year – 232,500 266,008 92,587 20,984 612,079
Disposals – – – (1,970) – (1,970)
Written off – – (92,396) (70,096) (435,449) (597,941)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2006 – 1,286,019 829,835 704,532 364,957 3,185,343
      
Carrying Amount      
�alance as at       
  31 December 2005 20,176,000 5,530,982 762,636 156,415 32,669 26,658,702
      
�alance as at       
  31 December 2006 20,176,000 20,420,745 692,099 238,532 93,830 41,621,206
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3.  PROPERTy, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Institute
     Furniture    
   Freehold Freehold & Office    
       Land       Buildings Equipment Computers Renovation Total
   S$ S$ S$ S$ S$ S$

Cost      
�alance as at 1 January 2005 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,772,377 744,627 860,185 30,137,690
Additions – – 582,597 100,739 – 683,336
Disposals – – (844,510) – (38,606) (883,116)
Written off – – (91,605) (4,940) (9,488) (106,033)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2005 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,418,859 840,426 812,091 29,831,877
      
�alance as at 1 January 2006 20,176,000 6,584,501 1,418,859 840,426 812,091 29,831,877
Additions – 15,122,263 196,142 175,016 82,145 15,575,566
Disposals – – – (1,970) – (1,970)
Written off – – (93,067) (70,408) (435,449) (598,924)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2006 20,176,000 21,706,764 1,521,934 943,064 458,787 44,806,549
      
Accumulated Depreciation      
�alance as at 1 January 2005 – 921,829 1,237,935 585,461 804,672 3,549,897
Depreciation charge for the year – 131,690 163,770 103,490 22,651 421,601
Disposals – – (654,570) – (38,606) (693,176)
Written off – – (90,912) (4,940) (9,295) (105,147)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2005 – 1,053,519 656,223 684,011 779,422 3,173,175
      
�alance as at 1 January 2006 – 1,053,519 656,223 684,011 779,422 3,173,175
Depreciation charge for the year – 232,500 266,008 92,587 20,984 612,079
Disposals – – – (1,970) – (1,970)
Written off – – (92,396) (70,096) (435,449) (597,941)
�alance as at       
  31 December 2006 – 1,286,019 829,835 704,532 364,957 3,185,343
      
Carrying Amount      
�alance as at       
  31 December 2005 20,176,000 5,530,982 762,636 156,415 32,669 26,658,702
      
�alance as at       
  31 December 2006 20,176,000 20,420,745 692,099 238,532 93,830 41,621,206

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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3.  PROPERTy, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)
 
In accordance with the Constitution of the Institute, the freehold land and freehold buildings were transferred to 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd which holds the freehold land and freehold buildings in 
trust for the Institute.

 Location

Freehold properties CPA House
 20 Aljunied Road
  Singapore 389805
 Consisting of 5 floors 
  (Units #01-01, #01-03, #01-04, #01-05, #01-06, #02-01, #02-02, #04-01, #04-02,  
 #05- 01, #05-02, #06-01 and #06-02) and totalling 2,779 sq. meters
 
 6 Raffles Quay
 #23-00
  Singapore 048580
 
Assets held under finance leases

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of $Nil (2005: $412,170) 
under finance leases.  The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment held under finance leases as at 31 
December 2006 was S$301,424 (2005: S$394,114).  Leased assets are pledged as security for the related finance lease 
liabilities (Note 8).

Assets pledged as security

In addition to assets held under finance lease, a freehold property with a carrying amount of S$15,021,453 (2005: Nil) is 
pledged as security to secure a mortgage loan from a bank (Note 7).

Depreciation

The depreciation for the year is charged to the income and expenditure statement as follows:

 Group
    2006 2005
    S$ S$
   
The Secretariat (Note 10)    307,124 227,777
The Practice Monitoring Division (Note 12)    1,511 563
The Academy (Note 13.1)    41,232 43,068
The Academy (Note 13.2)    262,212 159,607
    612,079 431,015
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4.   ASSOCIATES
 
 Group Institute
  2006 2005 2006 2005
  S$ S$ S$ S$
      
 
Investment in associates  41,568 –** –* –*
      
 
Details of associates are as follows:
  Effective interest held 
  by the Group
Name Country of incorporation 2006 2005
  % %
    
Insolvency Practitioners     Singapore 50 50
Association of Singapore Limited

Singapore Institute of Taxation Limited Singapore 33 33

*  There is no cost of investment as the associates are companies limited by guarantee whereby every member of the  
  company undertakes to contribute to meet the debts and liabilities of the company in the event of its liquidation to  
 an amount not exceeding $10.

** Prior year adjustment has not been raised to account for the associates using the equity method as the effect on the  
 financial statements was not considered to be material.  Accordingly, comparatives have not been restated.

 The summarised financial information of the associates are as follows:

    2006 2005
    S$ S$
   
Assets and liabilities   
Current assets    105,031 48,594
Total assets    105,031 48,594
Current liabilities    22,471 16,009
Total liabilities    22,471 16,009
Results   
Revenue    70,443 39,560
Profit after taxation    49,975 34,270

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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31 december 2006

5.   TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

 Group Institute
  2006 2005 2006 2005
  S$ S$ S$ S$
 
Trade receivables  903,872 320,303 903,872 320,303
Less: Allowance for       
 doubtful receivables  (2,156) (41,430) (2,156) (41,430)
  901,716 278,873 901,716 278,873
 
Accrued practice review      
  fee receivable  81,000 – 81,000 –
Deposits  115,726 113,926 115,726 104,926
Interest receivable  3,649 59,525 321 56,462
Others   8,997 20,448 8,997 20,418
Prepayments  300,296 243,553 300,296 243,553
Prepaid capital expenditure  446,882 – 446,882 –
Associate – non–trade  1,725 1,705 1,725 1,705
Subsidiary – trade (Note 17)  – – 17,079 155,042
   1,859,991 718,030 1,873,742 860,979

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on immediate to about 6 months’ terms.

The amounts due from subsidiary and associate are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Movements in allowance for doubtful receivables:

 Group Institute
  2006 2005 2006 2005
  S$ S$ S$ S$
      
�alance at beginning of year  41,430 61,334 41,430 61,334
Doubtful receivables recovered  (499) (15,064) (499) (15,064)
Written off against provision  (38,775) (4,840) (38,775) (4,840)
�alance at end of year  2,156 41,430 2,156 41,430

6.   TRADE AND OTHER PAyABLES

 Group Institute
  2006 2005 2006 2005
  S$ S$ S$ S$
  
Trade payables  619,229 285,965 619,229 285,965
Accrued operating expenses  1,023,047 722,881 1,011,127 720,525
   1,642,276 1,008,846 1,630,356 1,006,490

 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day term.
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7.   BANk LOAN
     
  Effective                                                 Group & Institute
  interest   2006 2005
  rate per annum Maturity  S$ S$

Current liabilities      
Secured bank loan at 4.25% per annum  4.25 2007 1,333,333 -
     
Non-current liabilities      
Secured bank loan at 4.65% per annum  4.65 2008 1,333,332 -
Secured bank loan at 1% over the bank’s 
 prevailing cost of funds1  6.00 2009 - 2012 5,111,113 -
    6,444,445 -

1 The interest rate on the floating rate loan reprice at interval of 1 month.

The loan is repayable in 72 equal monthly instalments of about S$111,111 commencing 1 November 2006.  It is secured 
by a mortgage over a freehold property (Note 3).

The carrying amount of the bank loan approximates its fair value as it bears interest at rates which approximates the 
current incremental borrowing rate for similar type of borrowing arrangement.
 

8.   FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Group & Institute

 Minimum Lease Present Value 
 Payments of Payments
  2006 2005 2006 2005
  S$ S$ S$ S$
     
Within one year  101,727 107,748 87,969 92,524
After one year but not      
   more than five years  250,660 352,387 218,389 306,357
Total minimum lease payments  352,387 460,135 306,358 398,881
Less: Finance charges  (46,029) (61,254) – –
Present value of      
   minimum lease payments  306,358 398,881 306,358 398,881

These finance lease liabilities are secured by a charge over leased assets (Note 3).

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

8.   FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (cont’d)
 
At the expiration of the finance lease agreements, the Institute has the option to purchase the assets for S$6,280 
(2005: S$6,280).  In the event that the option is not exercised, the lessor has the right to sell the assets to a third 
party and the Institute has undertaken to indemnify the lessor for the difference if the selling price is lower than the 
residual value of S$6,280 (2005: S$6,280).

The effective rate of interest is approximately 6% to 9.6% per annum (2005: 6% to 9.6% per annum).

9.   MISCELLANEOUS FUND

9.1 This comprises:
                      Group & Institute
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
 Community Service Project Fund (Note 9.2)   24,473 38,315
 �alance at end of year    24,473 38,315

9.2 Community Service Project Fund

 The fund is made up of donations from members, money from fund-raising projects and contributions from the 
Institute.  It is used for the Institute’s community service projects.  It is made up as follows:

                      Group & Institute
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   

�alance at beginning of year    38,315 47,406
Add: Donations from members    21,294 18,944
Less: Community service projects   
          funded during the year    (35,136) (28,035)
Net decrease for the year    (13,842) (9,091)
�alance at end of year    24,473 38,315
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10.  ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

SECRETARIAT

                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Auditors’ remuneration    14,800 15,300
Computer and office equipment maintenance    14,984 11,200
CPF    159,231 157,466
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3)   307,124 227,777
Employee benefit expenses    41,516 20,540
Finance costs     
- Interest on finance lease    1,954 1,954
- Interest on loan    88,234 –
General expenses    96,170 90,614
ICPAS scholarship    12,000 9,000
Insurance premiums    14,163 8,571
Journal and publication    272,849 276,918
Legal and professional fees    27,943 5,020
Library expenses    13,844 12,945
Lights and power    27,814 31,060
Marketing and promotion    401,636 180,991
Office maintenance and air conditioning    220,427 152,759
Postage and telecommunications    48,184 29,793
Practice Monitoring Division (Note 12)    200,060 62,188
Printing and stationery    24,608 22,512
Property, plant and equipment written off    – 646
Property tax    68,103 59,940
Regional and international conferences    54,808 104,470
Rental expenses    11,267 58,567
Salaries and bonuses     1,485,067 1,339,842
Social and hospitality     316,959 208,486
Subscriptions to accountancy bodies    107,424 106,502
Transport    5,024 4,533
Website expenses    34,500 44,711
    4,070,693 3,244,305

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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11.  OTHER INCOME

                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Advertising income    104,848 100,387
CATS & ATTS fees    311,121 287,196
Doubtful receivables recovered    – 3,285
Interest income from fixed deposits and bank balances   113,299 97,449
Management fee charged to the Academy    710,000 730,000
Management fee charged to the Practice Monitoring Division   30,000 –
Penalty fees    4,760 5,130
Sundry income    103,341 89,422
Website income    5,010 1,259
    1,382,379 1,314,128

 
12.  PRACTICE MONITORING DIVISION

                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Fee income    111,000 –
Sundry income    2,211 –
Less: Expenses   
  Administrative expenses    (58,333) (5,182)
  CPF    (22,415) (5,108)
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3)   (1,511) (563)
  Salaries and bonuses     (231,012) (51,335)
    (313,271) (62,188)
Net deficit    (200,060) (62,188)
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13.  NET SURPLUS FROM THE ACADEMy

13.1 CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION (CPE)
                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   

Fee income    1,717,798 1,805,535
Doubtful receivables recovered    – 11,779
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment   – 9
    1,717,798 1,817,323
Less: Expenses   
  Administrative expenses    (585,340) (508,229)
  Course materials    (27,470) (61,768)
  CPF    (23,929) (28,768)
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3)   (41,232) (43,068)
  Exchange gain    - 55
  Interest on finance lease    (3,000) -
  Lecturers’ fees    (514,617) (595,118)
  Property, plant and equipment written off   – (188)
  Salaries and bonuses     (213,385) (238,616)
    (1,408,973) (1,475,700)
Surplus on CPE    308,825 341,623

 

13.2 TRAINING COURSES FOR ACCA,  ATT, CAT, PAC, SAT, STT AND OTHERS 
                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   

Fee income    8,049,235 6,736,223
Doubtful receivables recovered    499 –
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment   200 31
    8,049,934 6,736,254
Less: Expenses   
  Administrative expenses    (2,453,459) (1,474,194)
  Course manuals    (345,791) (400,858)
  CPF    (151,887) (106,612)
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 3)   (262,212) (159,607)
  Exchange gain    83 206
  Interest on finance lease    (10,270) (24,181)
  Lecturers’ fees    (1,933,760) (1,779,015)
  Property, plant and equipment written off   (983) (698)
  Salaries and bonuses     (1,325,191) (897,766)
    (6,483,470) (4,842,725)
Surplus on training courses    1,566,464 1,893,529
Net surplus from the Academy    1,875,289 2,235,152

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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14.  ACCUMULATED FUND

Movement in Accumulated Fund for the Institute is as follows:
                                 Institute
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
�alance at beginning of year    30,469,200 28,115,902 
Total surplus for the year    1,403,117 2,353,298
�alance at end of year    31,872,317 30,469,200

15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE
                                  Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
Current tax expense   
Current tax     407,209 637,407
Underprovision in prior year    - 90,664
    407,209 728,071
Deferred tax expense     
Origination and reversal of temporary differences   20,649 65,500
Underprovision in prior year    10,151 -
    30,800 65,500
Income tax expense    438,009 793,571

Reconciliation between the average effective tax rate and the applicable tax rate:
                                  Group
     2006 2005
     % %
   
Statutory tax rate    20.0 20.0
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible   
  for tax purposes    2.6 1.1
Tax effect of income not subject to tax    (0.4) -
Effect on deferred tax liabilities not recognised   
  in prior year    - 1.7
Effect on deferred tax liabilities not recognised   
  in current year    - *
Prior year underprovision    0.5 2.9
Tax exemption    (1.1) (0.4)
Others    0.6 (0.1)
Average effective tax rate    22.2 25.2
 
* denotes a percentage of less than 0.1
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15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (cont’d)
 
Deferred tax liabilities 
                      Group & Institute
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Deferred tax liabilities   
Differences between tax and book depreciation   96,300 65,500

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following item:-

                                  Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
   
Unused tax losses     6,179 4,537

The unused tax losses are subject to agreement by the tax authorities and compliance with tax regulations.  They do not 
expire under current tax legislation.  Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above item because 
it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which a subsidiary can utilise the benefit.

 
16.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and bank balances and fixed deposits.  Cash and cash equivalents in the 
consolidated cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet accounts:
                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Fixed deposits    857,457 6,361,963
Cash and bank balances    1,340,128 1,448,502
    2,197,585 7,810,465

Fixed deposits are made for varying periods of between 1 and 12 months depending on the immediate cash requirements 
of the Group and earn interest of 0.83% to 2.88% (2005: 0.5% to 2.81%) per annum. 

Interest rates reprice at intervals of less than 1 year.

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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17.   SUBSIDIARIES AND INTRA-GROUP TRANSACTIONS

Association of Taxation Technicians (S) Limited (ATTS), Certified Accounting Technicians (Singapore) Ltd (CATS) and 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Singapore Pte Ltd (ICPAS PL), which are all incorporated in Singapore, are 
deemed to be wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Institute as Council Members of the Institute directly control ATTS, CATS 
and ICPAS PL.

During the financial year, the Institute has the following significant transactions with the subsidiaries on terms agreed 
between the parties:  

     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Management fee income    166,000 166,000

18.  kEy MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION

Key management personnel compensation comprised:

                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$
   
Short-term employee benefits    673,025 528,665
Post-employment benefits    51,924 45,243
    724,949 573,908
 

19.  COMMITMENTS

19.1 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for as at the balance sheet date but not recognised in the financial statements is 
as follows:

                      Group & Institute
     2006 2005
     S$ S$

   
Capital commitments in respect of property, plant and equipment  58,098 -
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19.  COMMITMENTS (cont’d)
 
19.2 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases an office under non-cancellable operating lease agreement.  The lease has a term of about  
1 year with an option to renew.

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease as at balance sheet date are as follows:

                                   Group
     2006 2005
     S$ S$

   
Within one year    43,778 321,037
After one year but within five years    – 43,778

20.  RISk MANAGEMENT

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial management are interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and foreign 
currency risk.  The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate changes on interest bearing loan and fixed 
deposits. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt.

Credit risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle its financial and 
contractual obligations to the Group, as and when they fall due.  The Group manages this risk by monitoring credit 
ratings and limiting the aggregate financial exposure to any individual counterparty.

The Group places its cash and fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions which are regulated.

As at balance sheet date, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.  The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance sheets.
 
Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and bank balances deemed 
adequate by the Management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group targets for available funds in the form of surplus liquidity and aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by 
keeping committed and uncommitted credit lines available.

notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006
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notes to the financial statements
31 december 2006

20.  RISk MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
 
Foreign currency risk
The Group’s foreign currency risk results mainly from cash flows and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.  It is 
the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative forward foreign exchange contracts for hedging and speculative purposes.

The Group has no significant exposure in respect of financial assets and liabilities held in foreign currency.

Estimation of fair values 

Bank loan
The carrying value of the bank loan approximates its fair value and is disclosed in Note 7.

Other financial assets and liabilities
The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and trade and other payables) are assumed to approximate their fair values 
because of the short period to maturity.



statistical highlights 
of the years 2004 to 2006

ACTIVITIES   20042  2005  2006

Number of Committees   32  33  35

Number of Meetings   66  67  74

Publications of the Institute   17  20  18

Courses and Talks   134  244  318

Conferences   1  1  1

     

MEMBERSHIP       
Number of Members   16,558  17,328  18,143

Total Subscriptions   $1,749,409  $2,434,760  $2,534,130

Total Secretariat’s Expenses   $1,636,702  $3,125,387  $3,280,091

Average Subscription per Member1   $106  $141  $140

Average Expenses per Member1   $99  $180  $181

     

TOTAL REVENUE   $7,895,622  $12,716,9653  $13,270,8523 
 
TOTAL EXPENSES   $6,312,934  $9,562,7303  $11,336,3473 
 
SHARE OF PROFIT OF ASSOCIATES (NET OF TAX)  –  –  $41,5683 
 

INCOME TAX EXPENSE   $185,753  $793,5713  $438,0093 
 
TOTAL SURPLUS 
FOR THE yEAR   $1,396,935  $2,360,6643  $1,538,0643

1  This is based solely on members’ subscriptions and does not take into account other sources of income.
2  The statistics are for a 9-month period from the date of reconstitution of ICPAS as a society, 1st April 2004, to  
 31st December 2004.
3  Consolidated figures

statistical highlights of the years 2004 to 2006
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THE SCHEDULE
          

          Rule 12

THE INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
OF SINGAPORE (GENERAL MEETINGS) RULES

I,   of                                                        

being a member of the Institute, do hereby appoint                                                   

of                                                       , or failing him 

of                                                        as my proxy to vote for me at the Annual General 

Meeting of the Institute to be held on 21 April 2007 and any adjournment of such meeting.

Dated this                  day of                        2007

Signed by )

in the presence of )

member of the Institute of Certified )

Public Accountants of Singapore, of )

(Address) )

  )          (Signature of member)

  )

  )

  )

   )

   )

   )

  (Signature of Witness)

NOTE: A member entitled to vote may appoint as his proxy any other member who is qualified to vote, except 
that no member shall be entitled to vote by proxy in the election of a member or members of the Council. 
[Rule 11, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]

 The instrument of proxy shall be in the form set out in the Schedule and shall be signed in the presence 
of another member, other than the proxy holder, who is entitled to vote. [Rule 12, ICPAS (General 
Meetings) Rules]

  
 The proxy shall not be entitled to vote at a meeting unless the instrument of proxy has been deposited 

with the Executive Director not less than 48 hours before the date and time fixed for the meeting. [Rule 
15, ICPAS (General Meetings) Rules]

form of proxy

form of proxy
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